Select Committee Agenda

SCRUTINY

‘ . Epping Forest District Council

Neighbourhoods and Communities Select Committee
Tuesday, 15th March, 2016

You are invited to attend the next meeting of Neighbourhoods and Communities Select
Committee, which will be held at:

Committee Room 1, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping
on Tuesday, 15th March, 2016

at 7.30 pm .
Glen Chipp
Chief Executive
Democratic Services A Hendry, Directorate of Governance
Officer email: democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk Tel:
01992 564246
Members:

Councillors M Sartin (Chairman), H Brady (Vice-Chairman), N Avey, R Gadsby, L Hughes,
R Jennings, L Mead, A Mitchell, S Neville, A Patel and B Surtees

SUBSTITUTE NOMINATION DEADLINE:
18:30

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
2. SUBSITUTE MEMBERS (COUNCIL MINUTE 39 - 23.7.02)

(Director of Governance) To report the appointment of any substitute members for the
meeting.

3. NOTES OF THE LAST MEETING (Pages 5 - 58)

To agree the notes of the last meeting held on 19 January 2016.

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
(Director of Governance). To declare interests in any items on the agenda.

In considering whether to declare a personal or a prejudicial interest under the Code
of Conduct, Overview & Scrutiny members are asked pay particular attention to



Neighbourhoods and Communities Select Committee Tuesday, 15 March 2016

10.

11.

12.

paragraph 11 of the Code in addition to the more familiar requirements.

This requires the declaration of a personal and prejudicial interest in any matter before
an OS Committee which relates to a decision of or action by another Committee or
Sub Committee of the Council, a Joint Committee or Joint Sub Committee in which the
Council is involved and of which the Councillor is also a member.

Paragraph 11 does not refer to Cabinet decisions or attendance at an OS meeting
purely for the purpose of answering questions or providing information on such a
matter.

TERMS OF REFERENCE AND WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 59 - 64)

(Chairman / Lead Officer) The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has agreed the

Terms of Reference of this Committee. This is attached along with an ongoing work
programme. Members are asked at each meeting to review both documents.

MUSEUM DEVELOPMENT TRUST (Pages 65 - 70)

(Director of Communities) to consider the attached report.

PREVENT INITIATIVE AND RADICALISATION ISSUES (Pages 71 - 74)
(Director of Communities) to consider the attached report.

BRENTWOOD DRAFT LOCAL PLAN: PUBLIC CONSULTATION (Pages 75 - 78)
(Director of Neighbourhoods) to consider the attached report.

LOCAL PLANS UPDATE (Pages 79 - 82)

(Director of Neighbourhoods) to consider the update on the current position of the
Local Plan.

RESPONSE TO LOWER THAMES CROSSING CONSULTATION (Pages 83 - 86)
(Director of Neighbourhoods) to consider the attached report.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 2015/16 - QUARTER 3 PERFORMANCE
(Pages 87 - 112)

(Director of Governance) to consider the attached report.

:(:E; F:|I;2R)FORMANCE INDICATORS 2016/17 - REVIEW AND TARGETS (Pages

(Director of Governance) to consider the attached report.



Neighbourhoods and Communities Select Committee Tuesday, 15 March 2016

13. DATA QUALITY STRATEGY 2016/17 - 2018/19 (Pages 123 - 132)

(Director of Governance) to consider the attached report.

14. ENFORCEMENT ACTIVITY (Pages 133 - 138)

(Director of Neighbourhoods) For members consider and note the content of the
Environment & Neighbourhoods — Enforcement action 2015 report.

15. REPORTS TO BE MADE TO THE NEXT MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW AND
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

To consider which reports, if any, should be submitted to the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee at its next meeting.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 3

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL
NOTES OF A MEETING OF NEIGHBOURHOODS AND COMMUNITIES SELECT
COMMITTEE
HELD ON TUESDAY, 19 JANUARY 2016
IN COMMITTEE ROOM 1, CIVIC OFFICES, HIGH STREET, EPPING
AT 7.30 -10.09 PM

Members M Sartin (Chairman), H Brady (Vice-Chairman), N Avey, L Hughes,
Present: R Jennings, L Mead, S Neville, A Patel and B Surtees

Other members R Bassett, G Waller and J H Whitehouse

present:

Apologies for R Gadsby

Absence:

Officers Present D Macnab (Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Neighbourhoods),
K Bean (Planning Policy Manager), K Durrani (Assistant Director
(Technical Services)), P Gardener (Communities Safety Officer), A Petty
(CCTV Operations Manager), K Stalabrass (West Local Policing Area
Partnership Analyst), J Warwick (Assistant Community Health & Wellbeing
Manager), C Wiggins (Safer Communities Manager) and A Hendry
(Senior Democratic Services Officer)

39. SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS (COUNCIL MINUTE 39 - 23.7.02)
It was noted that there were no substitute members for this meeting.
40. NOTES OF THE LAST MEETING

The notes of the meetings held on 17 November 2015 and 17 December 2015 were
agreed.

41. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest made pursuant to the Members Code of
Conduct.

42. TERMS OF REFERENCE AND WORK PROGRAMME
The Committee noted their Terms of Reference and Work Programme.
43. PICK FORM FROM COUNCILLOR NEVILLE

The Committee welcomed David Sprunt, from the Essex Transportation Strategy and
Engagement, Economic Growth; and Vicky Duff, the Essex Network Management
Group Manager. They were there to enlighten the committee on those facts and
policies used by Essex County Council and the guidance issued by the Department
of Transport on road speeds, especially relating to the implementation of 20mph
limits. A copy of their presentation are attached to theses minutes.

The Committee noted that:

o That Essex CC had a Speed Management Strategy advised by the
Department of Transport circular 01/2013;

PageH



Neighbourhoods and Communities Select Committee Tuesday, 19 January 2016

e It had been established by research that 20mph speed limits generally only
led to small reductions in traffic speeds — as established at Portsmouth;

o The latest advice was that a mix of 20mph limits and 20mph zones would be
better, providing that the signing was correct;

e The objective would be that ‘any 20mph restrictions should be self-enforcing’;

¢ Any 20mph limit of zone would require a Speed Limit Order, which had to be
consulted on;

e The current policy allowed for the consideration of 20mph limits on local roads
if the mean speeds were between 24 and 29mph, only then would the
Cabinet Member consider putting in a 20mph restriction;

e At the beginning of the limits there would have to be clear signage and also at
the end of the restrictions. There would also have to be repeater signs along
the route;

e 20mph zones had traffic calming measures e.g. speed humps, chicanes etc.
these zones applied not just to one road but to whole areas, such as estates;

o It was noted that generally people did not like them and the low speeds over
traffic calming measures also produced more noise for residents;

¢ The most effective method for reducing speed was the use of chicanes, but it
needed some major engineering work to put them in;

e 20mph signs could be used a calming feature but they would not physically
reduce the speeds;

e The county also has a “20’s plenty” scheme used mainly outside schools, but
very little reductions in speeds were achieved;

e This scheme was also trying to affect the children’s behaviour as well as their
parents;

e Advisory speed limit signs could be also be used outside schools, they were
not mandatory and thus no speed limit order was required;

e Before a scheme was put into place, information was required in the form of
speed surveys, traffic surveys and collision data;

¢ It was noted that a lot of areas in Essex did not have high collision rates for
Children and pedestrians;

Repeat signage in an area tended to create clutter on those roads;

o Essex police did not have the resources to enforce these areas.

The meeting was then opened out to questions from the members.

Councillor Neville thanked the officers for attending the meeting. He asked why
Essex had opted for at first having mean speeds of between 24 to 29mph before they
would consider putting in a 20mph limit, as the Department of Transport note for
guidance did not stipulate this. Ms Duff replied that the guidance mentioned small
reductions | traffic speeds if below 24mph would lead to general compliance. If you
did not have compliance from the public then the police would have a lot of enforcing
work to do. If speed limits were put in arbitrarily then you would be asking for a major
cultural shift, equivalent to the one for the use of seat belts and for drinking and
driving. The police would not be able to enforce this change. Essex CC cabinet
members were happy to put in 20mph limits where the average speed was less than
24mph, on the understanding that the police could not enforce it.

Councillor Neville said that there was evidence that the average speed in Portsmouth
went down by as much as 6 or 7mph, how could that fit into our network in Essex. Ms
Duff said that Essex had a road hierarchy, from Motorways, to ‘A’ roads and primary
routes networks — these PR1 routes were primarily about moving traffic; the PR2
network was primarily about moving traffic unless it went into a local settlement. Only

Page 6



Neighbourhoods and Communities Select Committee Tuesday, 19 January 2016

local roads could be considered for speed reductions and only if their mean speed
was 24mph or below.

Councillor Surtees noted that the 20mph zones in Harlow were effective and so were
the use of advisory signs. How much of this reduction was down to making drivers
aware of the limits. Ms Duff replied that advisory signs could be considered for some
PR2 routes.

Councillor Waller noted that the ability to change speed limits without reference to the
government was a relatively recent innovation. This seems to be the default limit in
most urban areas, but widely ignored when introduced in some London Boroughs,
especially when applied to main roads. The Essex policy was a sensible one. Where
average speeds were 30mph plus, a new limit would not reduce this and would
encourage contempt for speed limits in general. The police tended to ignore the
enforcement in London as it was resource intensive. Also, cars in low gear tended to
create more pollution. Speed limits should only be introduced in circumstances where
they can be justified.

Mr Sprunt agreed that compliance had always been an issue. If the limit was not
reasonable for the road then it would get ignored. It would also put additional burdens
on the highway authorities and the police. Traffic calming measures were not liked
because of their impact on the cars and also how it affected some people with
disabilities. If the limits were introduced across the district it would encourage people
to ignore the limits and bring it into disrepute.

Councillor Patel commented that the submitted PICK form said that implementation
by other authorities costed around £3 per head. How much would it cost in Essex?
Ms Duff said that the scheme in Portsmouth costed over £450,000 and the police
thought another £500,000 in signage and the maintenance of the signs. In some
places they were struggling to get drivers down to 30mph. There was a need to
identify the appropriate areas for this. Portsmouth was for the majority a residential
area, it was a major project and the resulting average drop is speed across the whole
network was just 1mph. Spending needed to be targeted better to achieve better
results.

Councillor Brady asked if there were a lot of towns in Essex to have 20mph zones.
She was told that Harlow was one of the first to have it. There were some individual
roads in Loughton. They had tried it on some rural roads in Brentwood, but it had not
really worked. It was noted that people in modern cars were very isolated from the
conditions outside. Speed humps were designed to be taken at 15mph but modern
cars could take them faster. Councillor Brady replied that she had seen them slow
down cars in her ward, they did help. She was most concerned about the traffic
outside schools; in her area cars tended to be parked on both sides. She noted that
in some countries 20mph was mandatory outside schools, could this be done here.
Ms Duff said they could do this but it was most likely that the traffic was moving more
slowly than 20mph. They were also loath to put in parking restrictions as parked cars
tended to slow down traffic. This was why traffic surveys were needed for each area
to identify problems.

Councillor Sartin asked if County Highways had any money to carry out any of these
schemes. Mr Sprunt said that the Local Highways Panel now have the money.

Councillor Sartin noted that some country roads have 40mph limits for short

distances, why was that? Mr Sprunt said he suspected that they were put in before
the Local Highways Panel was set up. Ms Duff added that they would have to have a

Pages/



Neighbourhoods and Communities Select Committee Tuesday, 19 January 2016

44,

speed regulation order; this would have to be agreed by the Police who would have
to say if they could enforce it.

Councillor Sartin thanked the County Officers for their presentation and information
on the background to putting in a 20mph limit for the district. There was enough
information to take to the parent Committee.

AREA CRIME ANALYST

The Chairman welcomed Caroline Wiggins the Safer Communities Manager and Kim
Stalabrass, the West Local Policing Area Partnership Analyst, who gave a short
presentation on the local crime and disorder figures up to and including November
2015, via the Home Office system, ‘iQuanta’. This system provided data for a 3 year
span. A copy of the presentation is attached to these minutes for information.

The Committee noted that:

o All Crime was up by 14% (630 cases) in comparison to previous years figures
to date;

e On a month by month total — in December 2012 there were 591 cases
compared to November 2015 with 642 cases, an increase of 7.9% (51 cases)
over 3 years;

e Epping Forest was 8" within Essex — that is 5.9% below the county average;
That equated to 56.835 reported incidents against a county average of 60.421
incidents;

e Against other similar authorities we had similar figures to Maidstone, who the
ONS identified as a match to Epping. Our figures were 56.835 crimes to
Maidstone’s 56.588 crimes;

e Broxbourne was a border council similar to us with similar proximity to London
and transport links and had 62.278 crimes and Watford (with 72.614 crimes)
had similar tube and Motorway links;

o The figures for violence against the person showed a 27% (246) increase in
Epping Forest in comparison to the previous year;

e The November 2015 total was 50% higher than December 2012. However,
this may be due to the change in the way these crimes were recorded;

e Epping was 17% below the Essex average;

e In comparison with other similar authorities, the figures for the year ending
November 2015, Epping had 1690, Maidstone 2690, Watford 1704 and
Broxbourne 1449;

Councillor Neville asked if there were new categories for violence against the person
and was told that new communications and IT categories had been added.

Ms Stalabrass continued:
e Burglary of dwellings was up by 15% in comparison to the previous year. This
increase was partly identified as people coming form Eastern Europe flying
into Stanstead committing burglaries and then flying straight out.

Councillor Janet Whitehouse asked just how seriously did the police take this and did
they catch anyone? She was told that they have known hot spots and have had
some successes. The problem with Epping Forest was that the criminals were
transient and we had good transport links.

Page 8



Neighbourhoods and Communities Select Committee Tuesday, 19 January 2016

45.

Councillor Avey postulated that a lot of crime was not reported such as small
burglaries and minor assaults. Mr Gardener, the Communities Safety Officer added
that burglary was a disturbing crime and the police would always investigate as it one
of the key priorities in our area. Police worked on intelligence nowadays and were
targeting the 20% that was the cause of 80% of crime, and were quite successful in
this area. Councillor Patel commented that maybe we could have a comparison on
how much police resources were put in different areas.

Ms Stalabrass continued with her presentation, noting that:

¢ Within the county Epping was 33% above the Essex average;

¢ However this quarter had dropped in comparison to the previous quarter;

e The data on Anti-Social behaviour was extracted from a different incident
recording system called ‘Storm’;

¢ Following a peak in October ASB incidents had fallen by a third in December;

e By locality, Loughton remained the highest, with 263 ASB incidents, followed
by Waltham Abbey (176) and Epping (139).

Councillor Jennings noted that with Loughton being an area of high population it
would have the highest number of incidents.

Ms Stalabrass continued:

o The different types of ASB was broken down into 15 categories;

e ASB incidents are at their peak between 00.00 and 03.59 between Saturday
night and Sunday morning — this data was relabelled as Saturday incidents to
potentially highlight NTE incidents;

o Data on Domestic Violence was taken from the Essex Police ‘Athena’ data
system and was from Oct-Dec 2015;

e The number of incidents during the months of October and November
remained level, but December saw a 22.7% rise;

e The top ward for reported Domestic Violence in our district was Waltham
Abbey South with 41 incidents;

e The incidents are ranked by level of risk; the majority were ranked as
medium. High risk cases get dealt with robustly;

o And it seems that Domestic Violence was more prevalent on Saturdays to
Tuesdays. However, there was just a 27% variance across the days of the
week.

The Chairman thanked Ms Stalabrass and Ms Wiggins for their useful and
informative presentation.

CCTV ACTION PLAN

Caroline Wiggins, the Safer Communities Manager, introduced the EFDC CCTV
strategy for 2016-2022, noting that this report had recently gone to the Cabinet for
their information and agreement. She was accompanied by Adrian Petty, the CCTV
Operations Officer.

The Committee noted that the strategy covered the period from 2015 to 2022,
following on from the previous strategy that was produced in 2008, when the
Community Safety Team took over the responsibility for the Councils CCTV
provision as part of the Safer, Cleaner Greener Review.

The Strategy set out the Council’s current CCTV provision, detailing respective
locations, numbers of cameras, condition and costs for maintenance, and repair and

Page®



Neighbourhoods and Communities Select Committee Tuesday, 19 January 2016

replacements over the next seven years, along with recommendations for de-
commissioning of equipment. It also provided an overview of the benefits that were
realised for the local communities in which it was installed and the various use made
of CCTV footage by the Police and insurance companies.

The Council’s success in the use of CCTV had generated ongoing demands from
Directorates to install new CCTV equipment within key areas of the district and the
point has now been reached where an increased budget was required, to meet the
costs of replacing old equipment and the increased servicing and maintenance costs,
which was also covered by the Strategy.

In July 2014 the Code of Practice (CoP) for CCTV operated by EFDC was reviewed
and changes were made to reflect the new national Code released in 2013. Further
to this, in 2015, a separate Code for the use of Rapid Deployment CCTV was written
and was due to be incorporated into the general CCTV CoP.

Councillor Surtees noted that the requirements for CCTV signage were not as clear
as they could be in places around the district. Mr Petty replied that everywhere there
were CCTV cameras should be properly signed. However, they did not want to
overpopulate an area with signage. In some areas they put larger signs in key areas.
They acted as deterrents on their own. If you could suggest where signs are needed
we could put them up. Most are of A4 size.

Councillor Patel noted that there were always technical changes in CCTV cameras
and something purchased now will be quickly outdated; could we consider a rental
option. Mr Petty agreed that technology did not stand still. Some areas have a thing
called stockpiling, that is, a rental agreement with companies for equipment that
costs a lot of money. We do not think that this was for us. We have a 7 year use of
our equipment and have operating systems that can use old and new technologies at
once. Councillor Bassett asked if all our systems were of evidential level. He was told
that they were.

Councillor Bassett then asked if we held a list of what equipment all Town and Parish
Councils have. Mr Petty said that he knew what Waltham Abbey and Nazeing had,
but not what the others had. Essex Police would like a map of where all our cameras
were, and he could put this together if the other local councils let him know what they
have. Councillor Bassett advised that he should email all the Parish and Town Clerks
and they would send you the information you want. Mr Petty agreed that this was
something he could do and make up a map for ourselves and the Police.

Mr Petty then gave the Committee some updated information for the period up to
January 2016. He noted that there were 40 more requests for footage in 2015 than in
the previous year; that 60% of the requests were from the Loughton area; they had
completed the new project in Springfields, Waltham Abbey and at Shelley Close,
Ongar; the Museum installation was now complete; and there were four other main
projects yet to be done for this year.

Councillor Patel wondered about the monitoring of cameras to find out if they were
still working. He was told that they were all remotely accessed and they accessed
each camera every day. There was also a programme of site visits for the smaller
sites. A camera will never be out of action for any extended period of time; they have
two companies that do the maintenance work for them and it would normally take 2
to 3 days to get to and repair equipment.

Page 16



Neighbourhoods and Communities Select Committee Tuesday, 19 January 2016

46.

The Chairman thanked Mr Petty and Ms Wiggins for their detailed report and update
of the CCTV systems.

LOCAL POLICING PROPOSALS

Caroline Wiggins, the Safer Communities Manager, introduced the report on the
recently proposed Policing cuts and their implications on the Council's Community
Safety Service.

This originated from November 2015, when the PCC, Nick Alston and the Chief
Constable of Essex Police announced proposals to make significant changes to local
Policing across Essex, in a move to ensure that Essex Police was fit for purpose, in
the future.

This report was aimed at starting a discussion with members on the implications of
the reduction in police resources and the impact it would have on the Council’s
Community Safety service.

The PCC and Chief Constable announced the funding challenges facing Essex
Police over the next four years, which would see a reduction of £63 million in the
Police budget by 2019/20. This was presented as the driver for making changes to
the way that Essex Police operates in future and the need to significantly reduce
community policing as from April 2016.

The Safer Communities Officer, Paul Gardener, added that the problem council
officers faced were that they were best guessing what was going to happen in the
district. They were looking at potential reductions in policing, such as triaging calls
into High, Medium or Low risks and then only reacting high risk cases and fielding the
other calls to other relevant authorities. He was mindful that the Council would pick
up more work and there would be more disgruntled members of the public not having
the Police act on their problems.

Anti-social Behaviour powers were given to us by the Government and they would
use them. But it would raise the officer's workload, especially as the Police would not
act. This may also result in more problems at the reception desks from disgruntled
members of the public. Therefore, it was likely that customer facing staff would need
additional training as more diverse enquiries were received from the public.

The Council only had two ASB officers to deal with the Epping Forest District. They
were seeing a rise in cases from 192 to 331 cases. The public would make their
feelings known to Members who will then let the officers know, increasing their
caseload as they try and resolve complaints on behalf of Members and this would be
very time consuming.

Ms Wiggins added that officers needed to know what Members wanted to take as
priorities in referred cases. They needed to know how to balance their resources.

Councillor Sartin said that it may be useful if members could have a training course
on this. Ms Wiggins replied that until the plans were made know in April, they needed
guidance on how Members would like officers to handle this.

Councillor Surtees noted that all the problems seemed to be coming our way as a
local authority. For example, the PSOs provided good intelligence but they were now

Page711



Neighbourhoods and Communities Select Committee Tuesday, 19 January 2016

47.

getting rid of them. Ms Wiggins added that they were also looking to the voluntary
sector to pick up some of the slack. The Police would not have a customer facing
counter in our area. We were looking to provide an office for them to share with us.

Councillor Sartin noted that a training session may come out of this as we were just
beginning to get to grips the implications. This was just a start.

Councillor Patel suggested that the Town and Parish Clerks be used if they could be
trained.

Councillor Brady noted that if a lot of people did not use Police Stations, why should
we get a lot coming to us. Ms Wiggins said that they had about 6 people an hour
attend police stations. They are now asked to use the Police website to report
incidents (see attached information sheet).

RESOLVED:

That the Committee noted the implications of the recently proposed Policing
Cuts and the resulting possible implications to the Council's Community
Safety Service.

REALITY ROADSHOW 2015

The Assistant Community Health and Wellbeing Manager, James Warwick,
introduced the report on the Reality Roadshow initiative.

Building on the long-standing success of Crucial Crew, the Reality Roadshow
initiative was a personal safety and health & well-being event that brought together a
host of statutory and voluntary agencies, to deliver a day of educational workshops to
Year 9 (14 year old) pupils at school in the district. It was specifically tailored to
address young people’s issues that have been identified as a priority concern locally.
It provides over 1100 pupils in the district with expert advice and guidance on making
the right choices in life for good health and well being.

The day starts with an interactive drama production delivered by the Arc Theatre
Company which tackles the high level priority of child sexual exploitation (CSE) and
the law around producing and distributing indecent images of people under the age
of consent. This bespoke production had been developed specifically for Epping
Forest Reality Roadshow in line with emerging concerns and trends reported by
schools in the area. The production explored issues relating to teenage relationships
and online safety. Pupils then rotate through five, classroom based workshops which
were approximately 40 minutes in duration. The event culminates in a presentation
to the whole school, by an ex-offender with real life experiences of the issues
explored during the day.

Pupils participated in either 5 or 6 workshops depending on individual school
timetables and each session was specifically designed to address current issues
facing local young people. The workshops delivered in 2015/16 were:

The Consequences of Crime — delivered by Essex Magistrates

Online Internet Safety — EFDC’s Community Health and Well-being Team
Sexual Health - NHS Sexual Health Services

Legal Highs and Substance Misuse - Alcohol & Drugs Advisory Service
(ADAS)

Page 12



Neighbourhoods and Communities Select Committee Tuesday, 19 January 2016

e Alcohol Awareness - AlcoHELP
¢ Healthy Relationships and Domestic Abuse - Safer Places

The impact of the Reality Roadshow programme on participants was generally very
significant, as the messages given are very clear and designed to show the worse
case scenarios of being involved in negative behaviours. The programme also
promoted the opportunity for young people to make changes in their lives and to
receive support and advice from the various agencies available locally.

o Pupils were equipped with current and appropriate information and able to
make informed choices;

o Pupils had the opportunity to hear and learn from the real life stories of
recovering addicts and ex-offenders;

o Pupils were able to ask for help and support about issues they may
encounter,

o Pupils were signposted to agencies that could offer further support, and how
to access this;

e The web links provided were uploaded onto the pupil pages of the school’s
website, thereby enabling anonymous access to information covering the
support services available.

In addition to benefiting the pupils directly, Reality Roadshow also indirectly benefited
parents and carers, through empowering the young people to be able to make the
right choices in life regarding relationships, alcohol, substances and so on; their
home life was therefore likely to improve, as well as their educational attainment and
life chances.

Councillor Sartin asked if this initiative was for independent schools. She was told
that it was not at present, but the hoped to include them in the future.

Councillor Patel voiced his frustration that it was only offered to one age group; it
should be offered to different age groups and targeted to that age group. Councillor
Sartin said that the younger children had the Crucial Crew day, which was the first
stage for year 6 pupils.

Councillor Mead asked if parents were involved in the roadshow and was told that
they were not.

Councillor Surtees said that it was a shame they could not start this at a younger age
as they would be susceptible to changing their mind-set. Mr Warwick said that they
had looked into this but it was a matter of fitting it into the school timetables.

Councillor Bassett said that as it was not open to parents could a note be given to the
children to give to their parents informing them as to where they could go to get help
if needed. Mr Warwick replied that they signposted them to the various agencies, but
could go further and give each child some information for their parents. Councillor
Surtees added that parents also needed to know what information was being given to
their children as it would be helpful to them.

The Chairman thanked Mr Warwick for his interesting report on the success of the
roadshow.

RESOLVED:

Pagedl3



Neighbourhoods and Communities Select Committee Tuesday, 19 January 2016

48.

That the Committee noted the success of the Reality Roadshow initiative and
the positive impact it had upon young people in the Epping Forest District.

RESPONSE TO DCLG TECHNICAL CONSULTATION ON THE NPP

Mr Ken Bean, the Planning Policy Manager introduced the report on the response to
the proposed changes to the national planning policy consultation. The National
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) was published in 2012 and was supported by the
online Planning Practice Guidance. Amendments are now proposed to the NPPF
which encompassed the following:

o Broadening the definition of affordable housing, to expand the range of
low cost housing opportunities for those aspiring to own their new home
(this includes the Government’s intention to introduce Starter Homes as a
type of low cost home ownership);

e Increasing the density of development around commuter hubs, to make
more efficient use of land in suitable locations;

e Supporting sustainable new settlements, development on brownfield land
and small sites (up to 10 units), and delivery of housing allocated in plans;
and

e Supporting delivery of starter homes.

The consultation period, which commenced on 7 December, had now been extended
to 22 February 2016. There were nine sections contained with the consultation paper
and 23 questions on which answers were sought. A discussion of the issues raised in
response to the proposed changes in the NPPF in accordance with the questions
posed was put in the appendix to the report for consideration.

Mr Bean commented that if members had comments on the proposed answers
drafted by officers to the CLG consultation then they could report them to him by 29
January. These would then be considered prior to sending the final version of
EFDC’s response that Councillor Bassett, as the Portfolio Holder responsible for
planning policy, would sign off in time to meet the extended DCLG deadline.

Mr Bean added that the Housing and Planning Bill was now going through
Parliament, the devil would be in the detail which he anticipated coming forward fairly
soon in the form of draft regulations. In relation to the current NPPF consultation the
key was the changes proposed to the affordable housing definition through
introduction of starter homes for first time buyers aged below 40 and exactly how this
would be implemented. Also, Epping Forest District bordered four London Boroughs
(Enfield, Redbridge, Havering and Waltham Forest). There was very real concern
that the disparity between the Starter Homes property value limit in London Boroughs
(£450,000) compared with Districts immediately outside of London such as Epping
Forest (£250,000), very few property types and areas within Epping Forest District
were likely to qualify and where they did could lead to demand for properties from
people currently in residence outside of the District. At present it was not clear what
the mechanism for registering an interest in purchasing a Starter Home would be, or
how this would be managed.

Page 14



Neighbourhoods and Communities Select Committee Tuesday, 19 January 2016

Councillor Brady expressed her concerns about Brownfield sites in the Green Belt
and if they could be developed. Mr Bean replied that responding to the current NPPF
consultation was the Council’s opportunity to put our views on this to the government.
He also noted that in relation to Starter Homes there was no requirement for S106
agreements and therefore questioned how supporting infrastructure was likely to be
funded / provided, particularly in Green Belt locations which by definition were likely
to be in more remote and therefore less sustainable locations with limited existing
provision.

Councillor Sartin said that with the extended time to reply, Members could look at it in
more detail and give a considered response to Mr Bean and his team by 29 January.

Councillor Surtees wondered if we could join up with other authorities and give a joint
co-ordinated response. Councillor Bassett replied that the problem was that we only
got 6 weeks to respond and would not be able to co-ordinate our response in that
time. We do let other authorities know what we would say and so could follow our
lead.

Mr Macnab said that this could also be put into the Council Bulletin for wider
consultation.

RESOLVED:

(1) That the proposed responses to the questions set in the Government’s
consultation paper on changes to the National Planning Policy be
considered; and

(2) That any considered addition to the responses be sent to either Mr K
Bean or Councillor Bassett by 29 January 2016.

49. LOCAL PLAN UPDATE

The Committee next considered the regular update on the current position of the
Local Plan. They noted that:

e A set of member workshops were being held to get the views of Members on
the draft Local plan;

o District, Town and Parish Council representatives have already attend the
workshops that have been held;

e Work continued on finalising the evidence base reports which will be used to
inform the policies included in the Draft Plan Preferred Approach;

¢ Government guidance and emerging Inspectors’ reports make clear the need
to undertake a comprehensive Green Belt Review of the entire District before
the release of any Green Belt land is considered;

e Stage 2 of the Green Belt review has now commenced;
The Council was also undertaking a settlement capacity analysis of the 10
largest settlements in the District, namely Epping, Theydon Bois, Buckhurst
Hill, Chigwell, Loughton/Debden, Waltham Abbey, North Weald Bassett,
Chipping Ongar, Lower Nazeing and Roydon. The purpose of the work was
to ensure that the District can address as much of its housing requirement as
possible within our existing settlements, and so minimise the potential need to
utilise Green Belt land for development;

o Further transport modelling work is being undertaken by Essex County
Council. This will look at the implications for the transport network of growth
and how it can be distributed across the Housing Market Area. The outputs

Pagei15



Neighbourhoods and Communities Select Committee Tuesday, 19 January 2016

50.

will then be considered by the districts and jointly by the four authorities at the
Cooperation for Sustainable Development Board; and

o Officers have also been involved in transport work being undertaken by the
London Borough of Enfield and continue to keep a watching brief on wider
transport work being undertaken as part of Enfield’s Northern Gateway
Access Package (NGAP);

o A set of member workshops each covering different topics / policy areas were
being held to get the views of Members on the draft Local Plan.

Councillor Sartin asked when the stage 2 study of the greenbelt would be ready. She
was told that the appointed consultants officers were presently undertaking the
necessary fieldwork and analysis and that it was hoped that a draft final report would
be produced by the end of March.

Councillor Surtees asked if we were on track for a draft Local Plan this year.
Councillor Bassett said that they were but added that the council was also still waiting
for the completion of information and evidence outside of our direct control, for
instance from the ECC on transport. Members were being asked to attend the current
programme of workshops to give their views.

RESOLVED:
That the progress report on the Local Plan be noted.
FOLLOW UP TO THE WASTE REVIEW MEETING

The Director of Neighbourhoods, Derek Macnab introduced his report on the recent
meeting reviewing waste and recycling collection arrangements. This was a special
meeting of this committee dedicated to this one subject, held on 17 December 2015
and was open to the public and members to put their questions to members of the
Biffa management team and relevant council officers.

In order to ensure that the review focused on the main issues that Members wished
to explore, this Committee in September 2015 established the scope of the review
and how the meeting will be practically undertaken. As a result, it was agreed that
the review would be undertaken in 4 parts, covering the following issues:

1) The procurement Process;

2) Mobilisation and first 6 months of Contract;

3) The revised arrangements from 12 May 2015.

Part four of the review was to reach a set of conclusions around what could have
been done better and to recommend any key considerations with respect to how the
Council could improve procurement and implementation of any future major service
contracts. The report sought to reflect on the discussion that took place at that
meeting in order to fulfil that requirement.

Following the review officers have reviewed the meeting and have noted the
following key learning points:

Part One - Procurement:

o Competitive Dialogue proved to be an effective means of procuring the new
Waste Contract, from both the Client and Contractors perspective.

Page 16



Neighbourhoods and Communities Select Committee Tuesday, 19 January 2016

Although the Members interview only scored 10% of the quality scores, and on
this occasion did not materially affect the final award, it was considered that
Member Interviews are still beneficial for future service contracts.

The role that cross-party Portfolio Holder Advisory Groups play in shaping
service contracts was recognised as a positive.

With contracts which involve major service changes, the costs to the Council
should not be underestimated in terms of advising residents etc. The £50,000
on the Waste Contract was in hindsight, too small.

Part Two — Mobilisation and First Six Months:

Overall the Waste and Recycling Contract mobilisation went well, with service
quality maintained over the period November 2014 to May 2015.

Although TUPE Arrangements were satisfactorily completed for staff
transferring from SITA to BIFFA, there were some concerns highlighted
regarding communication with staff despite Biffa’s best endeavours.

The innovation forum established between client officers and contractor,
proved useful in addressing service issues and identifying areas for
improvement, this should be encouraged as good practice.

The original start date for the change to 4-day collection was not achieved, due
to delays in vehicle acquisition and transfer of depots. However, the revised
date of 12 May was still in retrospect too early.

The number and type of informal arrangements that exist between
householders and collection crews should not be underestimated and should
be specifically addressed in terms of debriefing at end of contract periods.

Whilst it was felt that the problems encountered around the change to 4-day
collection were not simply attributable to the prior notification information
provided, it was felt that the letter to all residents could have been clearer.

The information contained on the Council’s Website was helpful, particularly
the tool which converted postcodes into revised day collection arrangements.

Part 3 — Introduction of Revised Arrangements:

Start date for change to 4-day collection too optimistic in as much as new fleet
was only delivered days before implementation, preventing crew familiarity and
ability to address technical failures.

A phased approach was not adopted and had not been elsewhere, to the best
knowledge of consultants and contractor. However, should not be ruled out in
future contracts, certainly there would have been value in test rounds with the
new fleet.

The new IT system would have benefited from earlier implementation and a
longer period of testing. The round information from the start of revised

Pageid17



Neighbourhoods and Communities Select Committee Tuesday, 19 January 2016

51.

collections was inaccurate, leading to whole streets being missed. Lack of
integration with client system also a major problem.

) Biffa lost 20% of the workforce that transferred from Sita, the outgoing
contractor. This was a loss of valuable local knowledge which should have
been captured in some way. Changing staff onto rounds in areas that they
were not familiar with and an initial reluctance to utilise knowledge of waste
client officers, compounded the problem.

o Some of the fleet purchased was not fit for purpose e.g. Street Sweepers that
could not deal with rural road network. In future, demonstration vehicles may
prevent re-occurrence.

o A need to utilise agency staff to cover additional rounds and cover vacancies,
delayed the stabilisation of the contract. Whilst tender evaluation
demonstrated that adequate resources were to be employed, did not take into
consideration the effect of staff turnover. Issue to be explored in future
contracts.

As a general conclusion it would appear that a number of the problems encountered
by Biffa when introducing the revised 4-day collection arrangements, could have
been avoided with additional time, e.g. to improve staff training and familiarisation
with new vehicles and IT, to test drive new routes more thoroughly, to retain and
utilise local knowledge of existing staff, to fully run in new fleet and to have operated
longer from new depot locations, before the service change.

Councillor Surtees noted that Biffa were now relying on additional plant, which
suggested they did not have enough equipment in the first place. Mr Macnab noted
that was a fair comment and the Partnership Board would be discussing this with
Biffa.

Councillor Janet Whitehouse commented that a lot of black bins seemed to have side
waste next to them. Mr Durrani replied that it was still the Council’s policy that they
did not collect side waste, but, because of the problems we had, they are now
accepting more side waste to normalise the collections. They have now almost got
the problems with assisted collection down to zero and were concentrating on this for
now.

The Committee agreed to put this report up to the main Overview and Scrutiny
Committee before it went on to Cabinet.

RESOLVED:

That the outcome of the Review of the Council's Waste and Recycling
Collection Arrangements be agreed and a report sent to Overview and
Scrutiny Committee informing them of the key findings.

REPORTS TO BE MADE TO THE NEXT MEETING OF THE OVERVIEW AND
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

The Committee thought that a short report back to the Overview and Scrutiny

Committee should be given on the items covered at this meeting, especially a report
on the Waste Review meeting.

Page 18



Neighbourhoods and Communities Select Committee Tuesday, 19 January 2016

52. FUTURE MEETINGS

The meeting noted the future meeting dates for this Committee.

Pageid9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



Highways | Department

20 MPH Policy Guidelines

Vicky Duff Network Management Group Manager
19" January 2016

RINGWAY

ntegrated expertise

| Essex County Council




gg obed

Contents

Essex Policy on 20’s

Types of 20’s
Advisory non enforceable 20’s

Information required

2 RINGWAY
JACOBS

integrated expertise

)

Essex County Council



6T obed

Fact and ECC Policy

» Essex County Council Speed Management Strategy
* Department for Transport Circular 01/2013

* Research into signed only 20mph limits shows that they generally lead to
only small reductions in traffic Speeds. (DfT circular 01/2013) Portsmouth.

e Can mix and match 20mph by limit and 20mph by Zone PROVIDING the
signing is correct.

» Essex Cabinet Member has confirmed that the objective is that “any
20mph restriction should be self-enforcing’ (etter to ail members May 2013)

2 RINGWAY
JACOBS

integrated expertise Essex County Council

)



6c obed

2 RINGWAY
JACOBS

integrated expertise

)

Essex County Council



¢z obed

20 MPH Limit

The current policy allows for the consideration of 20mph limits on local

roads if mean speeds are below 29 mph*

o 20MPH Speed Limits may be considered on PR2 routes with the
agreement of the Traffic Manager and Cabinet Member

Physical Traffic calming measures will not be installed as part of a 20 mph

Limit.

DfT guidance Signed only 20mph speed limits are most appropriate for areas

where vehicles speeds are already low with mean speeds at or below 24

mph

Terminal and repeater signs are require@lﬁlggggAY

integrated expertise Essex County Council

)



gz abed

20mph Zones

20 MPH Zones very effective at reducing collisions and injury

20MPH Zones require traffic calming e.g. speed humps, chicanes
Recommended by DfT that they are applied over an area consisting of
several roads

Identified by a 20 MPH Zone Entry and Exit Sign

No point within the Zone must be further than 50 metres from a Traffic
Calming Feature.

2 RINGWAY
JACOBS

integrated expertise Essex County Council

)



¢.c abed

2 RINGWAY
JACOBS

integrated expertise

A=
A=
Ay

Essex County Council



g¢ obed

20’s Plenty

ENTYs
uﬁr@

&

 Signs look as though they were designed by children and not official or
mandatory.

* We need proper 20 mph signs.

o 20’s Plenty should be law.

Conclusion most effective when engaging with Road Safety Officers and the
children to produce a learning experience. Cost £2,000 a school (RS not factored
In)

2 RINGWAY
JACOBS

integrated expertise Essex County Council

)



62 9bed

Advisory 20 mph Signs

No Speed Limit Order Required
Advisory only non enforceable

MUST NOT OPERATE OUTSIDE SCHOOL TERM TIMES

2 RINGWAY
JACOBS

integrated expertise

)

Essex County Council



Qg abed

Information

What is the issue/Problem

Speed
— What surveys have been taken

Collisions

— Collision Data
e Causation factors

Clutter
— Repeater signs

2 RINGWAY
JACOBS

integrated expertise

)

Essex County Council



LE abed

Thank You

2 RINGWAY
JACOBS

integrated expertise

)

Essex County Council



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32



6€ obed

Crime - EFDC

Kim Stalabrass
West LPA Partnership Analyst

Figures for All Crime, Violence Against the Person & Burglary — Dwelling are
taken from the Home Office system iQuanta.

Latest data set available is for offences recorded up to and including
November 2015.

iIQuanta provides data for a 3 year span.

vy wa}| sinuiy



g€ obed

800 ~

W

400 -

700
600
500

300 -
200 -
100 -

Crime - EFDC

All Crime

Up 14% (630 cases) in
comparison to previous
year to date.

4506 to 5136 cases

Month on month totals -
Dec 2012 591 cases
compared with Nov 2015
642 cases. An increase of
7.9% 51 cases overall over
3 years.



90 -+
80 -
70 A

Crime - EFDC

All Crime

Epping is 81 within Essex and

g¢ abed

5.9% below the county
average.

In real terms, Epping had 56.8
reported incidents against the
county average of 60.4 per
thousand residents.

GOLRS

A

o

AT
R,

SN

ol

c
o
Ke)
3]
=

Rochford
Uttlesford
Castle Point
Braintree
Brentwood
Chelmsford
Epping Forest
Colchester
Tendring
Thurrock
Basildon
Harlow

Southend-on-Sea



gg abed

Crime - EFDC

All Crime

All crime year to date per thousand residents.

Maidstone, Kent, (identified by ONS as a match to Epping in the Most Similar
Group)

Broxbourne is a border council with similar proximity to London and transport
link including M25

Watford similar tube and motorway links.

Watford 72.6 Crimes per thousand residents.
Broxbourne 62.3 Crimes per thousand residents.
Epping Forest 56.8 Crimes per thousand residents.

Maidstone 56.6 Crimes per thousand residents.



Crime - EFDC

Violence Against the Person

comparison to previous year

In Epping there has been a
(919) to date (1165)

27% (246) increase in

The Nov 2015 total is 50%
higher than Dec 2012.

| GT AON
| ST190
| GT des
| GT bny
ST INC
grunc
| GT Aepy
| GT Jdvy
| GT JeiN
| ST go4
| GT uer
| ¥T99@
| ¥T AON
T390
| T des
| T bny
- pTInC
yTune
| ¥T Ren
| ¥T idy
| YT e
YT ge4
| ¥T uer
| €T 99@
| €T AON
| €110
| €T das
| €T bny
C€TInC
eTune
| €T ke
| €T Jdv
| €T JeiN
€T ged
€T uer
AR

200
180 +
160
140

Page 33

120 +

100 +

80 -

60 -

40 +

20 A



€¢ abed

25 ~

20 A

15 ~

10 ~

Crime - EFDC

Violence Against the Person

Uttlesford

Rochford

Brentwood

Maldon

Castle Point

Braintree

Epping Forest

Chelmsford

Thurrock

Basildon

Colchester

Tendring

Southend-on-Sea

Harlow

Epping is 17% below the Essex
average of 15.2 per 1000
residents.

Harlow, a close neighbour had
20.8 incidents per 1000
residents.



g€ abed

Crime - EFDC

Violence Against the Person

In comparison, year ending November 2015 actual incidents —

Maidstone 2690
Watford 1704
Epping Forest 1690
Broxbourne 1449



0g abed

90 ~
80 -
70 -
60 -
50 -
40 -
30 -
20 -
10 -

Crime - EFDC

Burglary - Dwelling

This offence is up 15% (101
incidents) in comparison to
previous year to date.

November saw a monthly
increase of 40% 33 cases
compared to October.

Dec ‘12 82 burglaries
Nov ‘15 83 burglaries



L§ abed

18 -
16 -
14 +
12 -
10 ~

o N b OO ©
| | | |

Crime - EFDC

Burglary - Dwelling

Maldon [ ]
Uttlesford 4:|
Braintree 4:|

Chelmsford _:|

Tendring

Rochford

Harlow

Castle Point

Colchester

Thurrock

Southend-on-Sea

Brentwood

Epping Forest |

Basildon

Within the county, Epping is
33% above the Essex average
per thousand residents.

However, whilst Epping is still
above the Essex average this
quarter has dropped from
52.6% above the average
when compared to the
previous quarter.



gg obed

Crime - EFDC

Burglary - Dwelling

Using our own comparison council data, year to Nov 2015

Epping Forest
Maidstone
Broxbourne
Watford

765
349
331
230



68 abed

Crime - EFDC

Anti Social Behaviour

Data is extracted from the Essex Police incident recording system called
Storm. There is limited detail available about the incidents.



6v obed

Crime figures

Anti Social Behaviour
EFDC

ASB incidents by month

350

Following a peak in October
300

308 317
= 263 ASB incidents have fallen by a

250 249 third in December compared
. - to October.

150

100

50

0 T . T T . )

JULY AUGUST  SEPTEMBER = OCTOBER  NOVEMBER DECEMBER




¢ abed

300

250

200

150

100

50

Crime figures

Anti Social Behaviour

EFDC

ASB incidents by locality
October - December

176

263
139
75
- T T T T T T

ABRIDGE BUCKHURST CHIGWELL EPPING LOUGHTON ONGAR WALTHAM
HILL ABBEY

Loughton remains the locality
with highest ASB incidents
(263), followed by Waltham
Abbey (176) & Epping (139).

Loughton is 33% higher than
Waltham Abbey.



By abed

Crime figures

Anti Social Behaviour

DISTURBANCE 156
NUISANCE -YOUTH 112
NUISANCE-VEHICLE 84
ABANDONED VEHICLE 64
NUISANCE-OTHER 52
NUISANCE NEIGHBOUR 51
INFORMATION 35
SUSPICIOUS CIRCUMSTANCES 31
FIREWORKS 29
OBSTRUCTION 23
REQUIRE POLICE 16
DRUGS 13
NUISANCE COMMUNICATIONS 13
DISPUTE - CIVIL 11
CONCERN 10

EFDC

In the last quarter these are the top 15 types of
ASB calls received by Essex Police.

Types with less than 10 incidents have been
removed.



¢ abed

180

160

140

120

100

80

60

40

20

Crime - EFDC

Anti Social Behaviour

EFDC

All ASB incidents by day of week

159
145
117
108
| 96
i | I

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday

Friday

Saturday

Sunday

Across EFDC ASB incidents
totals particularly dip Tuesday-
Wednesday which are approx.
half the Saturday total.



g} obed

250

200

150

100

50

Crime - EFDC

Anti Social Behaviour

EFDC

Incidents by day of week - amended

117
108
96
|||| 85 80 ||||

203
“‘\ 101

Monday

Tuesday Wednesday Thursday

Friday

Saturday

Sunday

If taking incidents reported
00:00 — 03:59 on Sunday as
Saturday NTE related incidents
and adding them to Saturday
totals there is a rise in Saturday
incidents from 159 to 203.



6Y abed

Crime - EFDC

Anti Social Behaviour
Loughton

ASB incidents by amended day of
week

However, figures for Loughton
(highest ASB area) where Luxe
and Nu bar are located, show a

60
50
40
30
20
10

significant increase for
Saturday following a fairly
consistent Sunday — Friday
i pattern.
1 I I I I IE This is using data where
| incidents 00.00-03.59 Sunday
t@*

3 & 0@@* are attributed to Saturday.
'\oe $®b ;((\0 (_)’b



0g abed

Crime - EFDC

Anti Social Behaviour

DISTURBANCE

62

NUISANCE-YOUTH

48

ABANDONED VEHICLE

19

NUISANCE-VEHICLE

18

FIREWORKS

17

NUISANCE-OTHER

15

NUISANCE NEIGHBOUR

14

INFORMATION

11

SUSPICIOUS CIRCUMSTANCES

OBSTRUCTION

Loughton

The highest categories of ASB for Loughton area
(highest EFDC ASB area) are

Disturbance - 40% of district total (156)
Nuisance Youth -  43% of district total (112)
Abandoned Veh — 30% of district total (64)
Nuisance Vehicle 21% of district total (84)



L§ obed

Crime - EFDC

Domestic Violence

This data is taken from the Essex Police data system Athena and is from
Oct — Dec 2015.



gg obed

Month
October
November
December

Grand Total

Crime - EFDC

Domestic Violence
Count October and November

remained level but

146 December saw a 22.7%
(33) rise.

145
In the previous quarter

178 the monthly average
was 150.

469



6§ abed

Crime - EFDC

Domestic Violence
Ward Count
Waltham Abbey South 41 The top 7 wards for Domestic Violence
Chigwell 34
Loughton Broadway 29
Epping Lindsey &
Thornwood Common 26
Loughton Fairmead 24
Loughton St John 24

Waltham Abbey Honey
Lane

23



6S abed

Risk level

Medium
Standard
High
(blank)
Grand Total

Crime - EFDC

Domestic Violence
Count Medium risk assessed

25/ incidents form 55% of DV
incidents in EFDC.

140
Within a 5% tolerance medium

68 risk DV comprises 50% of all
DV for Harlow, Brentwood and
7 Thurrock
462



gG abed

Crime - EFDC

Domestic Violence

Dav of Week |Count Domestic violence remains more

Monday 72 prevalent in the Saturday — Tuesday
window. However, there is just a

Tuesday 72 27% variance across all days of the

Wednesday 56 week

Thursday 61

Friday 62

Saturday 74

Sunday 72




gg abed

Crime - EFDC

Kim Stalabrass



Epping Police Station:
Visits by members of public

The survey was taken over two periods of 28 days this year February and July. There were 381
noted attendances. This equates to an average of 1.2 people per hour, or 6 — 7 people a day.
Overwhelmingly people attended for:

e Advice 144 visits
e Property Enquiries

e Deliveries

e Toilet

e Traffic documents 12 visits
e Traffic Collision reports 23 visits
e Crime reports 6 visits

The current front counters are staffed by civilian officers. Essex Police are currently updating their
website this will enable Reception staff/ or volunteers to research questions asked by members of
public. This should reduce the need for bespoke training.

ASK Police https://www.askthe.police.uk/content/@1.htm is the national website for general police

enquiries. Receptionists would be able to direct customers to the website or carry out searches on
their behalf.

In the absence of the Police station we could provide phone and or terminal access, 101 to speak to
Police direct or access to a terminal to report an incident online. We may get enquiries around lost
and found property, there is a new function being planned which will allow you to report this online
with the Police you would then be asked to retain the property for 28 days, we would need to
consider storage retention policies if we report the property on behalf of a customer.

On occasions members of public are asked after a traffic incident to produce their documents at a
Police station. These occasions are reducing dramatically with the police being able to access
insurance and tax details on line, and if a member of the public does have to produce a document
they are given the option of choosing which Police Station they wish to attend, so this should not be
an issue for the proposed contact point.

| asked about the usage of the phone outside the police station. | was advised that although he
didn’t have they data to hand, the usage of the phone was minimal. These phones were used more
commonly outside larger police stations with custody suites such as Harlow where people are
required to attend. | have asked the Police Inspector to provide some data on this.

Page 53


https://www.askthe.police.uk/content/@1.htm

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 58



Agenda ltem 5

TERMS OF REFERENCE — SELECT COMMITTEE

Title: Neighbourhood and Community Services

Status: Select Committee

Terms of Reference:
General

1. To undertake overview and scrutiny, utilising appropriate methods and
techniques, of services and functions of the Neighbourhood and Communities
Directorates (not including Housing matters) and excluding those matters within remit of
the Audit and Governance Committee, the Standards Committee or the Constitution
Working Group;

2. To consider any matter referred to the Select Committee by the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee;

3. To keep under review:
(i Environmental enforcement activities;
(ii) Safer communities activities;

(iii) Waste management activities; and
(iv) Leisure Management
(v) Local Plan Scrutiny

4, To respond to applicable consultations as appropriate;

5. To establish working groups as necessary to undertake any activity within these
terms of reference;

6. To identify any matters within the services and functions of the Neighbourhoods
Directorate and the community services and community safety activities of the
Communities Directorate that require in-depth scrutiny and report back to the Overview
and Scrutiny Committee as necessary;

Crime and Disorder

7. To act as the Council’s Crime and Disorder Scrutiny Committee and to keep under
review the activities of the Epping Forest Community Safety Partnership as a whole or any
of the individual partners which make up the Partnership;

Performance Monitoring

8. To undertake performance monitoring in relation to the services and functions of
the Neighbourhoods Directorate and the community services and community safety
activities of the Communities Directorate, against adopted Key Performance Indicators
and identified areas of concern;

As at July 2015 Page 59



Environment

9. To monitor and keep under review the Council’s progress towards the development
and adoption of a corporate energy strategy / environmental policy and to receive progress
reports from the Green Working Party.

10.  To receive reports from the Waste Management Partnership Board in respect of the
operation of and performance of the waste management contract;

11.  To receive and review the reports of the Bobbingworth Nature Reserve (former
landfill site) Liaison Group.

Leisure

12. To monitor and keep under review leisure management matters and in particular the
procurement of the Leisure Management Contract.

Chairman: CllIr. Sartin

As at July 2015 Page 60



1O 8bed

Neighbourhood & Community Services Select Committee (Chairman — Cllr Sartin)
Work Programme 2015/16

Item

Report Deadline /

Progress / Comments

Programme of

Priority Future Meetings

(1) Enforcement activity Jandary March 2016 Annual report to Committee 8" July 2015;
15-September;

(2) CCTV action plan review January 2016 Completed - Annual report to Committee A7-November,

(3) Annual Report of the Community September 2015 Completed - Annual report to Committee +H-December

Safety Partnership (special);
19-danuary-2016:

(4) KPls 2014/15 July 2015 Outturn Report for 2014/15 15 March

Quarterly Progress reports to meetings: Q1 in September

(5) To review the specific quarterly
KPI's for 2015/16

2015; Q2 in November ’15; Q3 in March ‘16

(6) Receive notes of Waste
Management Partnership Board

As appropriate

Notes reported to Committee at first available
meeting following receipt. Received 17 June 15
minutes in Nov. 15.

(7) Receive notes of the Bobbingworth
Nature Reserve Liaison Group and
updates as appropriate.

As appropriate

Notes to the Committee at first available meeting
following receipt.

(8) To receive updates from the Green
Corporate Working Party

As appropriate
(Received an update
on the current position
in November ’15)

To monitor and keep under review the Council’s
progress towards the development and adoption of a
corporate energy strategy/environmental policy and
to receive progress reports from the Green Working
Party.

(9) Feedback on the success of the
Crucial Crew Initiative and learning
points for future programmes

September 2015

Completed

As at January 2016




29 abed

Neighbourhood & Community Services Select Committee (Chairman — Cllr Sartin)

Work Programme 2015/16

Report Deadline / Programme of
Item . Progress /| Comments .
Priority Future Meetings
(10) Report on the outcome of Stage 1 | September 2015
feasibility study on the options for TBA
establishing a Museum, Heritage and
Culture Development Trust
(11) Feedback on the success of the November 2015
Summer Holiday Activity Programme
and Learning points for future Received at the November 15 meeting
programmes
(12) Feedback on the success of the January 2016
Reality Roadshow initiative and Completed
learning points for future programmes P
(13) Report on the extensive new offer | March 2016
provided to visitors following the
expansion and improvement of the
Epping Forest Museum
Update to go to each Committee to keep a watch in brief on the position of
(14) To receive regular updates on the | meeting. the District’s Local Plan — (last went to January '16
current position of the Local Plan meeting)
(15) To review the waste Contract and | September (Scoping)
associated problems as put forward by | and 17 December 2015 e scope out the PICK form at thg Se_ptember
the PICK form meeting and to hold a one off review in December
2015.
(16) To receive a report on the ‘prevent | March 2016 . . .
initiative’ and radicalisation issues. The Committee agreed to add this to thelr.work
programme at their September 2015 meeting.

As at January 2016




€9 abed

Neighbourhood & Community Services Select Committee (Chairman — Cllr Sartin)
Work Programme 2015/16

Item

Report Deadline /
Priority

Progress / Comments

Programme of
Future Meetings

(17) To receive a presentation from the
Council’s area crime analyst on her
work.

For January 2016

Received at the January 2016 meeting

(18) The Assistant Director,
Neighbourhood Services to attend a
future meeting to address the problems

of fly-tipping

Went to the November
2015 meeting

(19) To review a PICK Form put
forward By CliIr Neville on a default
20mph signed speed limit.

January 2016

This item was passed to this Committee by the O&S
Committee meeting held on 20 October 2015.

Scoped out at the November 15 Meeting.
Reviewed at the January meeting.

As at January 2016




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 6

Report to Neighbourhoods &
Communities Select Committee

Date of meeting: 15t March 2016 SC RUTl NY

Subject: Museum Development Trust

Officer contact for further information: J Chandler Epping Forest District Council

Committee Secretary: Adrian Hendry

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

1. That Neighbourhoods and Communities Select Committee considers the proposal
to establish a Development Trust for Epping Forest and Lowewood Museums, to
operate in tandem with the management of the facilities; and

2. That the Committee agrees the proposed form of the Development Trust and
recommends this to the Cabinet for formal ratification.

Report:
Background

1. In April 2015, officers were successful in securing £55,000 funding from Arts Council
England (ACE) as part of its’ Resilience Programme, to undertake two feasibility studies. The
aim of the studies was to investigate opportunities for supporting resilience of the Museum,
Heritage and Culture (MHC) service over the long—term and during economic austerity.

2. A tender exercise was undertaken to appoint consultants to fulfil the required work
and two companies were appointed, these being the Management Centre and Barker
Langham, both of which have a high level of experience in the cultural sector and significant
expertise in the specific areas to be considered.

3. The Management Centre was appointed to undertake a study into the establishment
of Development Trust Model, and were given the brief to investigate a stand - alone ‘entity’
that would be able to access funding opportunities that the Council would be prohibited from.
Barker Langham were successful in being awarded the contract to investigate business and
income generating opportunities, across both the Council’s own MHC service and Lowewood
Museum, which is managed on behalf of Broxbourne Borough Council under a Service Level
Agreement.

4, In addition, Winckworth Sherwood Legal Consultants were appointed to provide Legal
advice in relation to the establishment of the proposed Trust entity.

5. The process for the studies involved detailed liaison with staff and the Leisure and
Community Services Portfolio Holder throughout the duration of the work, to ensure that
targets and objectives were kept on track. Regular progress meetings were also held with the
Portfolio Holder and the Assistant Director Community Services and Safety. Draft reports
were presented to the Portfolio Holder in September 2015 and further work undertaken,
where required, to demonstrate examples of best practice and to consider all available
options for the Council.

6. The final reports from both companies were completed before Christmas and officers
have since, spent time considering the implications and recommendations of the reports in

Page 65



line with the redevelopment and expansion of the district museum and in conjunction with
colleagues from Arts Council England (ACE).

Recommendations from the Fundraising Study

7. The key recommendations of the Fundraising Study, included establishment of a
Development Trust, to operate in parallel to the general management of Epping Forest and
Lowewood Museum services, based on the model of a company limited by guarantee and
registered charity.

8. As part of the work undertaken for the Fundraising Strategy, the consultants
undertook comparator interviews with three museum services that have been through a
similar transition; Hampshire Cultural Trust, Norfolk Museums Service and Maidstone
Museum Foundation. These interviews indicated the positive benefits of setting up a separate
charitable entity, which included ability to access a range of funding possibilities that were not
previously available to them, opportunity to secure additional grants and donations and the
ability to claim Gift Aid on qualifying ticket sales.

9. All of the comparators were structured as a Company Limited by Guarantee and
Registered Charity, although two of them had considered other options, including that of
Community Interest Company, this was felt to be the tried, tested and trusted route. None of
the comparators had found this structure a barrier to anything they would like to do.

10. The recommendation from the Fundraising Strategy was therefore for the Council to
use this structure of a Company Limited by Guarantee and Registered Charity.

Board and Governance of the Trust

11. Beyond the structure, one of the key things to come out of the comparator interviews,
was the role of the Board and the number of positive benefits that an effective Board can
bring, beyond being a legal necessity. They point to the benefits of taking a skills-based
approach to the board, rather than focussing solely on people’s connections or access to
funders.

12. Legally, there are minimum requirements for the Board, but beyond this it will be up to
EFDC to decide the extent of active engagement in fundraising and supporting the museums
that the board has, and this could be as limited as a mechanism for receiving donations.
However, the recommendation is that we gain most benefit from a Board that is independent
and actively engaged. Such a Board adds fundraising capacity, in terms of networks and
skills as well as time, to that of staff. A demonstrably independent Board will also reassure
donors and funders that they are not simply giving to the Local Authority in a different guise.

13. There will however, need to be a close relationship between the charity and the
Museum Service, and the Board will need to have a good understanding of the museum, its
work and the priorities and constraints of the staff. This is to ensure alignment, so that the
charity is supporting the museum in its priorities, rather than expecting the museum to deliver
on the charity’s priorities.

14. The comparator organisations also reflected on the values of a skills-based Board and
suggested the key skills and experience needed, as follows

e Accounting

e Legal

¢ Business Management

e Income Generation

¢ Communications, Marketing and PR

¢ Knowledge of the heritage/tourism sector

Page 66



In addition, it has been recommended that we include two Elected Members on an ex-officio
basis, as this is important for ensuring good links and alignment between Council, Museum
and Charity.

15. There are a range of methods of recruiting Board members, including open
applications and targeted invitations to express interest. The recommendation from the
consultants is to incorporate open invitation into the Board recruitment, due to a number of
benefits, including;

e Ability to reach candidates that we do not already know and have links to;
¢ In order to demonstrate the openness and independence of the charity;

e To build a sense of the charity as a way forward for the local community to
support and get involved with the museums;

e To begin to build profile and recognition for the charity in the local community.

This approach will need to be supplemented by identification of individuals that would make
good Board members and proactively approach them. Best practice would then be for Board
members to be appointed with a specified term of service, so that they know they are only
volunteering for a specified period of time; it provides a mechanism for Board members to be
replaced if they are not actively engaged and it avoids the Board becoming a closed clique
and ensures a regular input of new skills and perspectives.

16. The role of Chair will be key to the functioning of the Board, and it has been
suggested that a recruitment process for the chair can run in parallel to the process for other
Board members. The first Chair of the Board could be an Elected Member to ensure this
position is filled early on in the recruitment process.

Administration and Internal Structure

17. The Charity will also need to be supported with practical administration, and will need
separate banking arrangements to the Council in order for accounts to be prepared and
returns made to Companies House and the Charity Commission. It is possible for this role to
be organised through the Council and it can provide the conduit between the Museum’s, the
Council and the Board.

18. Going forward, the Board, Elected Members and Senior Management will have an
important role to play in fundraising and are vital for sharing the mission and vision of both
Epping Forest and Lowewood Museum. They will also need to engage with potential donors
on a peer to peer basis, giving credibility to any fundraising. In addition, fundraising needs to
be the responsibility of all staff, including front of house and volunteers, as they often have
the most engagement with visitors.

Way forward for establishment of a Development Trust

19. The Council has an opportunity to pump prime the structure required to set up the
Trust, through funding from the Arts Council England (ACE) Resilience Fund, which has
recently opened a second round of funding to support Museums and the Arts. Due to the rigid
timeframes around the application process, officers have already submitted an Expression of
Interest (EOI) ACE, which includes funding for the appointment of a Fundraising Manager (18
x month post) and part time administrator. If successful with the EOI, the Council will be
invited to submit a fully developed application, which needs to be in by May 5" 2016.

20. The total amount of the funding bid is £280,000 and this includes an allocation for

appointment of a Commercial Manager post and Public Programming Officer and budget for

a range of ancillary items including shop stock, publicity materials, staff training and

development. Under this round of funding, applicants are required to contribute a minimum of

10% match funding towards the overall bid and Cabinet has agreed a sum of £20,000 to be

made available from the Invest to Sa\is budg%for this purpose. This sum has been
age



supplemented by Broxbourne Borough Council and Chelmsford City Council, who have
agreed to contribute £10,000 each towards the bid, which will include the provision of
specialist support for Lowewood Museum and Chelmsford Museum.

21. This tripartite arrangement came into being in early February, following an approach
by Chelmsford City Council for support and advice in relation to operation of their Museum
Service, which has just received funding for a major Heritage Lottery Fund project.

22. Within this arrangement, it is planned for the Fundraising Manager to set up a joint
Development Trust for Epping Forest and Lowewood Museum Service and a separate Trust
for Chelmsford City Council.

23. Neighbourhoods and Community Services Select Committee is asked to consider the
proposal to progress with the establishment of a Development Trust
Reason for decision:

The establishment of a Development Trust for Epping Forest and Lowewood Museum
service has a range of benefits, in terms of potential for securing new and additional income
for museum activities, exhibitions and events.

Options considered and rejected:

Not to proceed.

Resource implications:

As stated in the report, the Council is required to provide a minimum of 10% match funding
towards the Resilience Fund bid which includes funding for the appointment of a Fundraising
Manager, but the amount required from the Council has been reduced due to contributions

from Broxbourne and Chelmsford Councils.

It is anticipated that the amount of funding that can be raised through the Development Trust
will far exceed the initial match funding provided by the Council.

Legal and Governance Implications:

The Council will be the lead party within the tripartite arrangement and will direct the work
related to the establishment of a Development Trust for Epping Forest and Broxbourne
Councils. It is also planned to introduce a new Service Level Agreement for Management of
Lowewood Museum, which will span 25 years. This has been agreed in principle by
Broxbourne and the establishment of the Trust will be subject to this being formalised.

In regard to the involvement of Chelmsford City Council within the Resilience Fund proposal,
if successful with the bid, an agreement will be drawn up to set out the various roles of each

party.

Safer, Cleaner Greener Implications: N/a

Consultation Undertaken:

A wide range of consultation has been undertaken as part of the two Feasibility Studies and
latterly, with The Chief Executive and Chief Finance Officer of Broxbourne Borough Council
and Director of Community Services from Chelmsford City Council.

Background Papers:

Fundraising Strategy and Action Plan — Management Centre
Development Trust Legal Report: Winckworth Sherwood

Impact Assessments:

Page 68



Risk Management: Risk Management will be undertaken as part of the development of the
second round bid, if the Council is invited to apply for Resilience Funding

Equality: It is envisaged that the establishment of a Development Trust will open up a range
of new opportunities for minority groups to access the museum services, both as visitors and

within volunteering.

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 7

Report to Neighbourhoods and
Communities Select Committee

Date of meeting: 15th March 2016 SC RUT| NY

Subject: Prevent Duty — Home Office Funding

Officer contact for further information: Caroline Wiggins Epping Forest District Council

Community Safety Manager

Committee Secretary: Adrian Hendry

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

That Neighbourhoods and Communities Select Committee receives a report on work
undertaken in the district in relation to the Home Office Prevent agenda, which has
been funded through a £10,000 grant from the Home Office.

Report:

1. The Counter-Terrorism and Security Act 2015 contains a duty on specified authorities
to have due regard to the need to prevent people from being drawn into terrorism - the
“Prevent duty”, which came into force for local authorities on 15t July 2015.

2. The Prevent duty is a key part of CONTEST, the Government’s Counter terrorism
Strategy which aims to stop people becoming terrorists or supporting terrorism. The strategy
aims to respond to the ideological challenge of terrorism and those who promote it; prevent
people from being drawn into terrorism and work with organisations where there are risks of
radicalisation.

3. The current, most significant threat to the UK is from Al Qai'da and associated groups
and organisations in Syria and Iraq, including ISIS, as well as terrorists associated with the
extreme right. Action by these groups has led to the terrorism threat in the UK currently being
the highest it has, since 9/9.

4. In October 2015, the Council received notification from the Home Office, that it would
be allocating £10,000 to all local authorities (excluding priority areas) as a one off payment in
this financial year only, for the delivery of specific work to support the implementation of the
Prevent Duty.

5. All Councils were required to apply for the funding and needed to present a plan on
how the money would be spent. The application on behalf of EFDC focussed on two distinct
areas of work; the upgrading of the Council’s IT systems to prevent misuse of IT for extremist
material, and, the provision of a Prevent Education Programme within the district's local
secondary schools, for both pupils and teachers.

6. The Council was successful in its application for prevent funding and the Council’s
ICT Department has undertaken the following work to improve security to IT infrastructure;
upgrading of a number of Firewalls to improve protection for ICT connectivity to remote
offices and installation of a number of Branch Routers to improve ICT connectivity and
security for Home Workers.

Page 71



7. In regard to Prevent Education work, the Council’'s Community, Health and Wellbeing
Team initially consulted with the secondary schools in the district to ascertain their perceived
need for Prevent training for pupils and staff, and found that all schools were very keen to be
provided with support.

8. Nationally recognised Training programme ‘Me and You Education’ was therefore
commissioned to undertake the delivery of in-schools Prevent work and this has been
delivered to pupils in years 7 — 13 across three schools, since the beginning of January .

9. The training programme consists of a 50 minute presentation, which covers identity,
race, belonging, extremism and terrorism. At the end of the session pupils are asked to
complete feedback questionnaires, which are then analysed. The findings from the
questionnaires completed so far, identify that the participants:

N

Understand how the issue of race can be used to divide people

Appreciate the dangers of extremist propaganda

Know about some of the extremist group individuals working in the UK

Understand how important it is to be comfortable and confident in who they are
Appreciate how people, who are very different, can work together and work out
their differences through conversations, and,

6) Are more knowledgeable and have increased understanding and confidence
about Extremism.

(9]

10. Out of the schools visited, Ongar Academy, which, as Members will be aware is a
very new school in the district, opted for a programme of teacher training. Officers from the
Council therefore attended a half day training session alongside the teachers, which they
found was very useful for building on knowledge about Right Wing and Muslim Extremism;
identification of vulnerabilities and how to report concerns.

11. Since the Prevent Education programme started in January, over 2760 young people
have attended the training’ and a further 4346 pupils will receive the programme across four
schools, over the next few weeks.

12. The feedback from the schools so far has been excellent and Chris Seward,
Headmaster at Davenant School had the following comments to make to Me & You
Education, after the training session at Davenant:

“It was an important day for the school as it provided the opportunity for students and staff to
reflect on an extremely important, contemporary issue. You presented with authority and
sensitivity and, throughout the day, students from across the age groups showed great
interest and respect. The conversation has started. Thank you.”

13. Following the success of the training programme in the Epping Forest District, other
local authorities have also commissioned Me and You Education to deliver Prevent work
across the respective schools in their areas and the programme is now seen as providing
best practice in Prevent Education.

14. It should be noted, that the Prevent training programme has been offered to Epping
Forest College, but the offer has recently been declined.

Page 72



Reason for decision:
This report is for information rather than a decision.
Options considered and rejected:

None

Resource implications:

The majority of the Prevent work has been funded through the Home Office funding.

Legal and Governance Implications:

The Counter-Terrorism and Security Act 2015 contains a duty on specified authorities to have
due regard to the need to prevent people from being drawn into terrorism - the “Prevent
duty”, which came into force for local authorities on 13t July 2015

Safer, Cleaner Greener Implications:

The Work undertaken in relation to Prevent, has a significant relevance on Safety within local
communities.

Consultation Undertaken:

Officers have consulted with the Home Office and local schools.
Background Papers:

Impact Assessments:

Risk Management: The provision of Prevent training and enhancement to the Council’s ICT
security, help to reduce the risk of a terrorist incident in the district and potentially, further
afield.

Equality: The Prevent work funded through the Home Office, as stated in this report, aims to
help protect vulnerable people form radicalisation.

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 8

Report to Neighbourhoods and
Communities Select Committee

Date of meeting: 15 March 2016 SC RUTl NY

Subject: Brentwood Draft Local Plan 2013 to 2033

Epping Forest District Council
Officer contact for further information: | White PPing -

Committee Secretary: A Hendry

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

That the following comments be made to Brentwood Borough Council in response to
the consultation on its Draft Local Plan 2016:

(a) To support Brentwood Borough Council’s spatial strategy which
(i) concentrates new housing and employment development in the
A12 and A127 corridors; and
(i) allows for limited release of Green Belt for development, and
limited development, including infilling, within rural villages;

(b) To support the aim of Brentwood Borough Council to make provision for its full
Objectively Assessed Housing Needs (7,240 new houses) entirely within its own
area;

(c) To suggest that the final version of the Local Plan should include

(i) direct reference to the Duty to Co-operate and related future
arrangements with neighbouring authorities; and
(i) consideration of the potential for joint working with neighbouring

authorities to make sufficient provision for the needs of the
travelling community, with particular reference to paragraphs
4(d), 10 (c) and 16 of “Planning policy for traveller sites” (2015).

Report:

1. The Brentwood Draft Local Plan includes the strategy, planning policies and proposed
land allocations intended to cover the period 2013 to 2033. The consultation period runs from
10"  February to 239 March 2016. The document can be viewed at:
www.brentwood.gov.uk/localplan

2. The Borough has an area of about 15,300 ha, 89% of which is Green Belt. Its 2011
population was 73,601 with the 2014 mid-year estimate being 75,600. It provides about
30,000 jobs, dominated by micro- and small businesses.

3. The last planning consultation from Brentwood Borough Council was called “Strategic
Growth Options” and was received in January 2015. This Council’'s formal response was
made by Portfolio Holder decision in February 2015 as there was not time to report to a
relevant Committee. The response was generally favourable and supportive, welcoming
Brentwood’s commitment to accommodate all of its Objectively Assessed Housing Need
(OAHN) within its own boundary. Brentwood also acknowledged the importance of working
with neighbouring authorities on cross-boundary issues including Crossrail, employment land
and job provision, and making provision for the travelling community.

Page 75


http://www.brentwood.gov.uk/localplan

4. The Draft Local Plan includes 13 Strategic Objectives under 5 themes — (i) Managing
Growth; (ii) Sustainable Communities; (iii) Economic Prosperity; (iv)Environmental Protection
and Enhancement; and (v) Quality of Life & Community Infrastructure. The Plan’s Draft
Spatial Strategy divides the Borough into 4 areas — (a) Rural North (this area adjoins the
Epping Forest District boundary); (b) A12 corridor - including Brentwood town and Shenfield;
(c) Rural South; and (d) A127 corridor. The settlement hierarchy identifies 4 categories — (i)
Brentwood town and its connected local centres; (ii) village service centres, including
Ingatestone and, later in the Plan period, Dunton Hills (adjoining Basildon) and West
Horndon; (iii) larger villages — 7 named; and (iv) smaller villages — 5 named.

5. The Draft Plan seeks to fully meet its OAHN within Brentwood’s boundary — 7,240
houses (net) between 2013 and 2033 - an average rate of 362 per annum. Provision will also
be made for an additional 5,000 jobs (250/annum), requiring about 33ha new employment
land mainly located (23.4 ha proposed) at Junction 29 of the M25 — Brentwood Enterprise
Park.

6. Brentwood'’s preferred approach is to achieve the right balance between conserving
the Borough'’s character and delivering development which meets the needs of all those who
live or work in the area, and those who visit. Key considerations are land availability,
development needs, scale of growth proposed, the existing settlement pattern and hierarchy,
and capacity of places to accommodate growth in a sustainable manner.

7. Areas within the two key transport corridors (ie the A12 and A127) create the focus for
sustainable growth. Brentwood and Shenfield will be the main focus for development in the
A12 corridor supported by two strategic allocations in the A127 corridor, making provision for
new homes and jobs.

8. To meet local needs fully there will be limited release of Green Belt for development
within transport corridors, in strategic locations to deliver self-sustaining communities with
accompanying local services, and urban extensions with clear defensible physical boundaries
to avoid further sprawl and provide development swiftly.

9. Limited development, including infilling where appropriate, will take place in villages
within rural areas at a level which maintains local amenity and distinctiveness, and
commensurate with available services and facilities. This means that development in the
Rural North of the Borough (the area adjoining this district) is extremely unlikely to be of
significant extent or to have any adverse consequences for Epping Forest District.

10. Brownfield opportunities will be encouraged where appropriate schemes help to meet
local needs, and help to ensure that villages remain as thriving communities. This includes
the redevelopment of previously developed sites in the Green Belt. The Draft Plan calculates
that if all proposed development allocations come forward and are eventually removed from
the Green Belt, this would reduce the total area by 1% - i.e. the Borough should still be 88%
Green Belt by 2033.

11. The Essex Gypsy and Traveller Accommodation Assessment (GTAA) published in
July 2014 identified a need for an additional 84 pitches in the Borough between 2013 and
2033. Since July 2013, permission has been granted for 17 new pitches, reducing the GTAA
target to 67. The Draft Plan includes a criteria-based policy to deal with planning applications
for pitches and proposes the Dunton Hills “Garden Village” as a broad location for future
provision of about 20 pitches.

12. While the Draft Plan makes reference to the revised DCLG guidance (Planning policy
for traveller sites (August 2015)) and the main changes which have been introduced —
including definitions — there is no mention made of what the guidance says about the
possible preparation of joint development plans to deal with this particular issue. The point is
that Epping Forest District and Brentwood Borough are in a very similar situation — ie with
challenging pitch provision targets from the GTAA (112 and 84 respectively) and with very

Page 76



comprehensive Green Belt coverage (92% and 89% respectively), so there could be some
advantage in considering joint provision in the general area of the common boundary. The
Draft Plan suggests that the target for new pitches may fall slightly in light of the revised
guidance, and the GTAA is being reviewed.

Reason for decision: While the consultation document raises no issues of concern for this
Council, it is considered important to respond formally as a neighbouring authority to satisfy
Duty to Co-operate requirements.

Options considered and rejected: Not to respond to the consultation.

Resource implications:

Legal and Governance Implications: These could arise if there is agreement about, or even
the production of a joint development plan for, shared provision of sites and pitches for the

travelling community. The Council is a statutory consultee to the Brentwood Borough Local
Plan.

Safer, Cleaner Greener Implications: There are no such implications arising from the
recommendations in this report.

Consultation Undertaken: None required — the recommendations of this report and the
Council’s response to the consultation will be considered by the Neighbourhoods and
Communities Select Committee on 15" March 2016.

Background Papers: Brentwood Draft Local Plan 2013 — 2033 (January 2016); Planning
policy for traveller sites (DCLG August 2015)

Impact Assessments:

Risk Management: There are no risk management implications arising from the
recommendations of this report.

Equality: There are no equality implications arising from the recommendations of this report.

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



Agendg ltem 9

Report to Neighbourhoods and
Community Services Select Committee

Date of meeting: 15 March 2016 SC RUT' NY
Subject: Local Plan Update Epping Forest District Council
Officer contact for further information: Ken Bean ext 4610

Committee Secretary: A Hendry

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

To note the progress on the Local Plan

Reasons for Report:

Under the terms of reference, the Neighbourhoods & Communities Select Committee has
requested a regular review and update on the Local Plan.

1) Local Plan Timetable

The Local Development Scheme agreed by Cabinet on 11 June 2015 has the timetable for
consultation on the draft plan scheduled for July 2016 to September 2016. However, this
timescale is now looking very challenging given that the timetable for the Green Belt Review
Stage 2 has slipped and that strategic transport work remains outstanding. The current position
reached on both of these key pieces of work is explained below.

The Government has made clear their expectation that all local planning authorities should have a
post NPPF local plan in place and have set out their commitments to take action to get plans in
place and ensure there are up to date policies. This includes intervening where no local plan has
been produced by early 2017 to arrange for the plan to be written, in consultation with local
people, to accelerate production of a local plan. The Government are currently consulting until 15
April 2016 on the criteria to inform their decision on whether to intervene to deliver this
commitment. This is included within the technical consultation on implementation of planning
changes arising from measures outlined in the Housing and Planning Bill that is currently being
debated in Parliament.

EFDC were visited on 1 February 2016 by an official from DCLG when it became apparent that
we are one of the authorities on the Government’s list for potential action. One of the penalties
proposed for not having produced a plan, (it is not clear yet how this will be interpreted), is the
loss of New Homes Bonus. It is clear that the Council needs to make good progress this year and
to have consulted on our Draft Plan Preferred Approach prior to the Government’s yet to be
determined 2017 cut-off date.

Page 79



2) Member Workshops

The purpose of these workshops, that includes Town and Parish Council representation, is to
inform Members of emerging key issues that the draft Local Plan will need to cover and to
ensure that Member views and concerns are aired at this formative stage in order that they
might be taken account of in the policy drafting.

Recent workshops have covered design on 28 January 2016 and evolving work on stage 2
work of the Green Belt study on 25 February 2016. Both were well attended and Members
provided valuable information and opinions on the matters presented. In respect of the Green
Belt workshop, Members were afforded a short period (until 10" March), to send further
comments on the parcel boundaries and to feed in local knowledge and views about the areas
now being looked at in more detail.

It is intended that future workshops to inform the Draft Plan (Preferred Approach) will consider
climate change, energy and flood risk; development management policies; settlement policy
and preferred sites. A programme is being worked up for these sessions and once finalised
Members will be advised of dates and arrangements accordingly.

3) Key Local Plan Evidence

Work continues on finalising the evidence base reports which will be used to inform the policies
included in the Draft Plan (Preferred Approach) that the Council consults on later this year.

Green Belt Review

Government guidance and emerging Inspectors’ reports make clear the need to undertake a
comprehensive Green Belt Review of the entire District before the release of any Green Belt
land is considered. It is important to remember that the outcome of the Green Belt Review is
only one, albeit an extremely important, piece of the evidence base that will inform the
Council's future plan-making decisions.

Following completion of the Stage 1 work reported to Cabinet in September 2015, work on the
Green Belt Review Stage 2 is being undertaken for the Council by external consultants LUC. It
is understood that the consultants’ fieldwork and analysis has now largely been completed
giving a finer grain assessment of the broad locations identified in the Stage 1 work. In
particular, this will provide detailed evidence and information concerning the contribution
different parcels of land make to the Green Belt purposes identified in the NPPF. This in turn
will assist the Council in deciding:

e The areas where the Green Belt policy designation should remain;

e Any historic anomalies in the existing boundaries or locations where development has
taken place, which may therefore suggest minor amendments to the Green Belt
boundaries are required;

e Areas that may be least harmful in Green Belt terms if released from the Green Belt.

It therefore follows that, simply because a parcel, or part of the parcel, is being appraised as
part of the more detailed work, this does not necessarily mean that it should / will be allocated
for development in the emerging Local Plan, or that the Council would look favourably on a
planning application.

As noted above, the consultants recently ran a workshop to ensure that Member views are
appropriately taken account of in this work. Once the Stage 2 study has been completed, (now
likely to be around mid-April), together with the other evidence the findings will be used to
inform the Draft Plan (Preferred Approach).

Page 80



Settlement Capacity Work

Fregonese Associates have made good progress on the settlement capacity study of the
District's 10 largest settlements - namely Epping, Theydon Bois, Buckhurst Hill, Chigwell,
Loughton/Debden, Waltham Abbey, North Weald Bassett, Chipping Ongar, Lower Nazeing and
Roydon. This will provide the District with the information to determine the potential for
additional capacity within existing settlements over and above that identified in the SLAA, and
so minimise the potential need to utilise Green Belt land for any future growth. Like Stage 2 of
the Green Belt Review, the results of this work will be used to inform, and be published
alongside, the consultation Draft Plan Preferred Approach.

Transport

To help inform the best way to meet the objectively assessed housing need for the Strategic
Housing Market Area identified in the work reported to Cabinet in October 2015, further
transport modelling work is being undertaken by Essex County Council. This will look at the
implications for the transport network of growth and how it can be distributed across the
Housing Market Area. The outputs will then be considered by the districts and jointly by the
four SHMA authorities at the Cooperation for Sustainable Development Board. This work is
being progressed using support from ATLAS and facilitated by AECOM to undertake a
sustainability appraisal on the impact of strategic growth options in the four authorities to meet
the overall housing and employment figures for the SHMA area. Officers have met Natural
England and the Conservators of Epping Forest to consider the impact on air quality in
particular for Epping Forest itself.

Delays have been encountered in the strategic transport assessment using the VISUM model
which has still not been signed off by Highways England. This is of concern because it could
lead to a delay in completing the work to test the strategic options for growth in the SHMA
area. A joint letter from the leaders of the four authorities to local MPs and relevant ministers
was sent on 22 February 2016 seeking a dedicated resource at senior level within Highways
England to assist with the work so that Local Plans are not further delayed.

Officers have also been involved in transport work being undertaken by the London Borough of
Enfield and continue to keep a watching brief on wider transport work being undertaken as part
of Enfield’s Northern Gateway Access Package (NGAP).

Other evidence base studies

Essex County Council is undertaking a Historic Environment Characterisation study of the
District with a final report due this Spring. Town and parish councils are also to be asked for
expressions of interest in participating in work leading to the establishment of a Green
Infrastructure Framework for the District. The intention is that this work will produce a
Corporate District-wide strategy and can be used to help inform policies in the emerging Local
Plan as well as potentially support neighbourhood planning initiatives. A short report and
presentation explaining more about this work will be given at the next Local Councils’ Liaison
on 29 March 2016.

4. Duty to Cooperate

Officers and Members continue to meet regularly with appropriate authorities, principally
through the Cooperation for Sustainable Development Officer group and Member Board, to
consider a wide range of cross boundary issues. In addition to the post SHMA work, the Board
has considered other strategic issues including employment, Green Belt Review work. The Lea
Valley Food Taskforce continues to develop a programme for the future of the glasshouse
industry - one of the District’s historic and still important sectors (along with Enfield and
Broxbourne).

Page 81



5. Neighbourhood Plans

Moreton, Bobbingworth and the Lavers have finalised their draft Plan and submitted it to the
Council. The plan has now been published and is currently being examined.

Eight other Parish and Town Councils have applied to designate neighbourhood planning areas
for their areas (Chigwell, Epping, Buckhurst Hill, Theydon Bois, Loughton, North Weald Bassett,
Epping Upland and Waltham Abbey). Many of these are now at early stages in scoping out and
drafting their plans.

There are proposals in the Housing and Planning Bill to streamline and simplify neighbourhood
planning so that there is automatic designation of whole parishes, statutory time limits on local
planning authority decisions and powers for the Secretary of State to intervene to send a plan to
referendum if there are delays or disagreements.

Page 82



Agenda ltem 10
Report to Neighbourhoods and
Communities Select Committee

Date of meeting: 15 March 2016
Subject: Response to Lower Thames Crossing Consultation SC RUTI N Y
Officer contact for further information: Ken Bean (x4610) ' Epping Forest District Council

Committee Secretary: Adrian Hendry (x4246)

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

To consider and agree the Council’s response to the Highways England consultation
on options for the proposed location and route for construction of a new Lower
Thames crossing linking north Kent and south Essex.

Summary:

¢ Highways England is consulting on proposals for a new road crossing of the River
Thames connecting Kent and Essex. It is considered that a new crossing is needed
to reduce congestion at the existing Dartford crossing and unlock economic growth,
supporting the development of new homes and jobs in the region.

e The proposal is the culmination of lengthy investigations into options for a new Lower
Thames Crossing which has been lobbied for by Kent and Essex County Councils
and business leaders. The consultation period commenced on 11" February and
runs until 24th March 2016. There are three options north of the Thames contained
with the consultation paper explained below and upon which views are sought.

o Members are asked to note the consultation as summarised below and agree that the
Council’s response to the consultation is expressed in terms of:

a. Support for the principle of constructing a new Lower Thames Crossing;

b. Preference for the new crossing at Location C as a twin bore tunnel; and

c. Preference for the line of the connector roads following Route 3 north of the
Thames linking onto the M25 between junctions 29 and 30.

Background

1. For over 50 years, the Dartford Crossing has provided the only road crossing of the
Thames east of London. It is a critical part of the UK’s major road network carrying local,
national and international traffic. The proposed multi-billion pound road tunnel across the
Thames connecting Essex and Kent will provide a valuable alternative to the existing
congested Dartford Crossing and assist regeneration plans on both sides of the estuary.

2. In 2009 the Department for Transport (DfT) commissioned a study identifying five
locations for a crossing to potentially alleviate congestion at the existing Dartford Crossing.
The two most easterly of these were found to be too far from the existing crossing to ease the
problems at Dartford and were eliminated from further consideration.

3. In 2012 the DfT commissioned a study to assess three remaining location options:

. Option A: located close to the existing crossing;

Page 83



. Option B: connecting the A2 Swanscombe Peninsula with the A1089;

. Location Option C: connecting the A2/M2 with the M25 between junctions 29
and 30;
. Location Option C variation: which would additionally widen the A229 between

the M2 and M20;

4. In 2013 the DfT held a public consultation inviting views on the need for a crossing
and where to locate a new crossing. Later that year the Government announced its decision
not to proceed with Location Option B because of the impact on local development plans and
the limited transport benefits. The Government published its response to the consultation in
July 2014, confirming that there is a need for an additional crossing between Essex and Kent,
but that there was no consensus about where it should be.

5. Following a series of studies and a public consultation in 2013, the Government
commissioned Highways England, (HE) the operator of the country’s motorways and major
roads, to carry out a more detailed assessment of the remaining options (A and C). These
are at the site of the current Dartford crossing, known as Location A, or a new crossing
location further east, shown on the map below and known as Location C.

6. At both locations HE have developed engineering solutions and assessed them in
terms of their economic, traffic, environmental and community impacts. The assessment has
also taken into account the significant growth and development plans for the region. At
Location C, three potential route options have been identified north of the river in Essex and
two south of the river in Kent.

A

A127

Romford Dunton

Junction 29—
West Homdon =

Upminster <
Hornchurch Bulphan

Basild
b S0t

North Ockendon v»_\"’

Horndon on Canvey Island
the Hill

«w  South Ockendon
g

Stanford-le-Hope

Linford

Junction 30 North Stifford

Aveley ™ A3
Purfleet
Chadwell
St Mary

o West Tilbury

A
Chafford g
Hundred <

Junction 31 -8
L, Grays

W East
M Tilbury

Location C
Bored Tunnel

Tilbury

r Dartford o
sl it Greenhithe
Swanscombe . Northfleet 4‘3"5‘

Gravesend
Junction 1b~ sl

B o 4
Junction 2~ -

L)
& Western Southern Link

Longfield Cobham

Higham  a2g9

; Eastern Southern Link

Junction 1 Rochester

%

Gillingham

The case for a new crossing

Page 84



7. Congestion and closure of the existing Dartford crossing occurs frequently and this,
together with a lack of alternative transport links, creates significant disruption and pollution.
This in turn impacts communities and businesses locally, regionally and elsewhere within the
UK. It is considered that whilst the removal of payment barriers and the introduction of
electronic payments at the Dartford Crossings have recently improved traffic flow and journey
times, this has not addressed the need for increased capacity. Already carrying 50 million
vehicles a year and with traffic volumes forecast to increase, the free flow improvements will
only relieve congestion in the short-term and major improvements are considered to be
needed to provide a long-lasting solution.

8. In addition to reducing delays for drivers, a new crossing could transform the region
by providing a vital new connection across the Thames. It would stimulate economic growth
by unlocking access to housing and job opportunities benefitting not only the region but the
whole of the UK, providing better journeys, enabling growth and building for the future.

9. The additional Thames crossing plans have been welcomed by Essex and Kent
County Councils as well as the Road Haulage Association and Freight Transport Association.
Lobbying of Government has been ongoing for over a decade to promote a new Thames
crossing which is viewed by many as much needed infrastructure.

10. The two short listed locations for a bridge or tunnel announced by DfT in 2013 were:

e Option A: adjacent to the existing Dartford Crossing (the two tunnels and the QEII
bridge that carry M25 traffic across the Thames)

e Option C: further east (to the east of Gravesend and Tilbury) linking the M2 in Kent
with the M25 in Essex via the A13.

A variation of option C, known as ‘Option C variant’ was also shortlisted this included
widening the A229 to create an improved link between the M2 and M20 in Kent.

11. HE has now identified its preferred option as Location C which is also known to be the
preference of both Essex and Kent County Councils. Their assessments have shown that
Location C provides double the economic benefits of Location A; as well as a clear
alternative route to the Dartford Crossing, reducing congestion and improving resilience of
the road network. Location C would support regeneration objectives on both sides of the
Thames estuary and the lengthy construction phase could be undertaken without causing
traffic disruption in the vicinity of the Dartford Crossing.

12. On the choice between a tunnel or bridge HE favour a bored tunnel solution as it
would generate the least noise and visual impact during construction and operation and
would be likely to have least impact on protected habitats and species by virtue of minimizing
disturbance over much of its length. The tunnel would have separate tunnels for north and
southbound traffic each with two lanes but with space to add further capacity at a later date.
A 70mph speed limit would apply.

13. HE has calculated the cost of its preferred option in the range of £4.3 - £5.9bn.
Subject to the necessary funding and planning approvals, HE anticipates that the new
crossing could open in 2025 if publicly funded. If private funding is also used the crossing
would open later, in 2027.

14. It should be noted however that the Location C proposal is not universally supported
with there being some opposition from Thurrock Council where the tunnel would emerge.

Connector Roads
15. A package of new roads or existing roads upgraded to dual carriageway would

connect the tunnel with the existing network. South of the Thames these would connect from
Page 85



the end of the M2 near Rochester in Medway, linking up to the A13 north of the Thames, and
then joining the M25 between junctions 29 and 30.

16. As illustrated on the map above, the consultation presents three options north of the
river:

1) Route 2: upgrade the A1089; this would mix local and long-distance traffic.

2) Route 3: the shortest route, a new road with some impact on local ecological and
heritage sites but less than routes 2 or 4.

3) Route 4: a new section of road together with upgrading the existing A127. This route
would be longer and more expensive than the other two options and impact on
ancient woodland, a conservation area and a registered park and garden.

17. Route 3, providing the shortest route and greatest improvement on journey time,
would be an entirely new road constructed to modern standards for a 70mph road. It would
also have the benefit of the lowest environmental impact and constructed with least
disruption to existing traffic routes.

Options considered and rejected: Not to respond to the consultation.

Resource implications: Consideration of this consultation has been undertaken within the
Planning Policy Team liaising closely with the Cabinet Members responsible for
Transportation and planning Policy matters.

Legal and Governance Implications: The proposed Thames Crossing is being consulted
on by Highways England on behalf of Government and would, if approved , then need to be
progressed through the various statutorily prescribed highways and planning processes.

Safer, Cleaner Greener Implications: As the consultation comprises a series of options it is
difficult at this stage to assess likely implications for the District. However, in overall terms it
is likely that the addition of a Thames crossing further east than the current Dartford
crossings is likely to have the effect of diverting particularly long distance haulage ftraffic
further away from this District.

Consultation Undertaken: None required — the recommendations of this report and the
Council's response to the consultation will be considered by the Neighbourhoods and
Communities Services Select Committee on 15" March 2016.

Background Papers: Further details of the current consultation being undertaken by
Highways England, including the summary business case can be accessed via this link.
https://highwaysengland.citizenspace.com/cip/lower-thames-crossing-consultation

Impact Assessments and Risk Management: There are no direct impact assessment or
risk management implications arising from the recommendations of this report.

Equality: The proposed changes to national planning policy are being advanced by

Highways England on behalf of Government. There are therefore no immediate direct
equality implications for Epping Forest District Council.

Page 86


https://highwaysengland.citizenspace.com/cip/lower-thames-crossing-consultation

Agen em 11

Report to: Neighbourhoods and
Communities Select Committee

Date of meeting: 15 March 2016 S C RUT' N Y

Epping Forest District Council
Portfolio: Safer, Greener and Transport (Councillor G.
Waller)
Subject: Key Performance Indicators 2015/16 — Performance at Quarter 3

Officer contact for further information: B. Copson (01992 564042)

Democratic Services Officer: A. Hendry (01992 564246)

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

That the Select Committee reviews performance against the Key Performance
Indicators within its areas of responsibility, at the end of Quarter 3.

Executive Summary:

The Local Government Act 1999 requires that the Council make arrangements to secure
continuous improvement in the way in which its functions and services are exercised, having
regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

As part of the duty to secure continuous improvement, a range of Key Performance
Indicators (KPIs) relevant to the Council’s services and key objectives, are adopted each
year by the Finance and Performance Management Cabinet Committee. Performance
against the KPlIs is monitored on a quarterly basis by Management Board and overview and
scrutiny to drive improvement in performance and ensure corrective action is taken where
necessary.

Reasons for Proposed Decision:

The KPIs provide an opportunity for the Council to focus attention on how specific areas for
improvement will be addressed, and how opportunities will be exploited and better outcomes
delivered. It is important that relevant performance management processes are in place to
review and monitor performance against the key performance indicators to ensure their
continued achievability and relevance, and to identify proposals for appropriate corrective
action in areas of slippage or under performance.

Other Options for Action:
No other options are appropriate in this respect. Failure to monitor and review KPI
performance and to consider corrective action where necessary could have negative

implications for judgements made about the Council’s progress, and might mean that
opportunities for improvement are lost.

Page 87



Report:

1. A range of thirty-six (36) Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for 2015/16 was adopted
by the Finance and Performance Management Cabinet Committee in March 2015. The KPlIs
are important to the improvement of the Council’s services, and comprise a combination of
some former statutory indicators and locally determined performance measures. The aim of
the KPIs is to direct improvement effort towards services and the national priorities and local
challenges arising from the social, economic and environmental context of the district.

2. Progress in respect of each of the KPlIs is reviewed by the relevant Portfolio Holder,
Management Board, and overview and scrutiny at the conclusion of each quarter. This report
provides an overview of all KPIs and includes in detail those indicators which fall within the
areas of responsibility of the Neighbourhoods and Community Services Select Committee
(N&CS SC).

3. A headline end of Q3 performance summary in respect of each of the KPlIs falling
within the N&CS SC'’s areas of responsibility for 2015/16, is attached as Appendix 1 to this
report together with details of the specific nine-month performance for each indicator.

Key Performance Indicators 2015/16 — Quarter 3 Performance
4, All indicators - The overall position for all 36 KPIs at the end of Q3, was as follows:

(a) 28 (78%) indicators achieved target at the end of Q3;

(b) 8 (22%) indicators did not achieve the Q3 target; and

(c) 0 (0 %) of these KPIs performed within their tolerated amber margin.

(d) 28 (78%) indicators are currently anticipated to achieve their cumulative year-end
target.

5. N&CSC indicators - Twelve (12) of the Key Performance Indicators fall within the
N&CS SC'’s areas of responsibility. The overall position with regard to the achievement of
target performance at the end of Q3 for these indicators, was as follows:

(@) 8 (67%) indicators achieved their Q3 target;
(b) 4 (33%) indicators did not achieve their Q3 target; and
(c) 0 (0%) indicators performed within their tolerated amber margin.

(d) 8 (67%) indicators are currently anticipated to achieve their cumulative year-end
target;

(e) 3(24%) indicators are currently not anticipated to achieve their year-end target;
(f) 1 (8%) indicator, it is uncertain whether it will achieve its year-end target.

6. The ‘amber’ performance status used in KPI reports identifies indicators that have
missed the agreed target for the quarter, but where performance is within an agreed
tolerance or range (+/-). The KPI tolerances were agreed by Management Board when
targets for the KPIs were set in February 2015.

7. Attached at Appendix 2 are the Improvement plans for the KPIs which fall under this
committee’s areas of responsibility and which failed to achieve target this quarter.

8. The Select Committee is requested to review performance at the end of Q3 in relation
to the KPIs for 2015/16 within its areas of responsibility.

Page 88



Resource Implications:

Resource requirements for actions to achieve specific KPI performance for 2015/16 will have
been identified by the responsible service director/chief officer and reflected in the budget for
the year.

Legal and Governance Implications:

None relating to this report. Relevant implications arising from actions to achieve specific KPI
performance for 2015/16 will have been identified by the responsible service director.

Safer, Cleaner, Greener Implications:

None relating to this report. Relevant implications arising from actions to achieve specific KPI
performance for 2015/16 will have been identified by the responsible service director.

Consultation Undertaken:

The performance information and targets set out in this report have been submitted by each
appropriate service director and have been reviewed by Management Board. The individual
KPI improvement plans for 2015/16 are agreed by the Board.

Background Papers:

KPI submissions are held by the Performance Improvement Unit.

Impact Assessments:

Risk Management

None relating to this report. Relevant issues arising from actions to achieve specific KPI
performance for 2015/16 will have been identified by the responsible service director.

Equality:

None relating to this report. Relevant implications arising from actions to achieve specific KPI
performance for 2015/16 will have been identified by the responsible service director.

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank



S8A %0026 - %6926 %0096 - %ZE 66 %0086 - %2686 %0086 (10 sasuaid _m_emss_ﬁ A=
S8A %0E - %92 %0 € - %L ¥ %0°E - %Z G %0E i i _m_u_mssm% LLOIEN
op 0EZ - L0L zel - 08 L - oy 0L ("ou) (sawoy i aseasoul)  QLOIFN
S8A %0006 - %2506 %0006 - %E9 L6 %0006 - %0948 %0006 (%) (suoneBnsanur asioy)  GOOIEN
HI=TER TV %0006 - %¥9G8 %0006 - %9218 %0006 - %z, 19 %0006 (%) (¥enuods-uou di-f1d)  80013N
saA %0006 - %6806 %0006 - %IVZ6 %0006 - %F2 06 %0006 (9g) (10EnU0D di-Al4)  20013N
a4 %0006 - %ZEVE %0006 - %EEG6 %0006 - %SEG6 %0006 (%) (suoneBnsaaun di-fi4) m@em_z
S8A %0056 - %9796 %0056 - %L6°G6 %0056 - %ZZ 96 %0056 (%) (sanssi pooyinogqybBiapy) mﬁ%,.m_z
op %0k - %Fh %01k - %G %01 -nmi %0k (%) (smia@)  +00I3N
sal %8 - %8 %8 - %8 %8 - %k %8 (%) (5817} £00ITN
op %0009 - %06°.5 %519 - %009  %ESTZY - %0019 %B5 ¥ (%) (Bunafoas ployasnoy)  ZooIaN
saA 00¥ - 162 662 - 16k 66k - 56 00k (B3q) (@15BM pajaAoal-uon)  LOOIEN

s|d¥ Apauenn) spooyinoqybiapy

ipanaiyoe

[enyoy 16 | jenoy 16 jenoy 161 jenoy 16
aq o} Ajay) I I I
1961 pua-1eak 5| ¥ 1sueny) £ iaueny) Z isyenp | Japent) siojeaipu] Apayenpy




PaUnoD AUl Ag palalo S2NMSS

Bunafoas dags Joop jo abuel apin aul jo abeiueape (Il 2¥E] 01 sjuapisad abeinoous

0] paainbal aie sanElul Mal PaUSAID 30 pINoYs Uigm weans sisem Gunadiss uou syl
abueya| | w seus1ew Guyaiial aie aiaul eyl pasiuboiad s1 1 sasamoH 1ebiel pus Jeak syl 19aWw o)

few 2unby euy 2u1 05 1248 2igeeAe 10U 20 Japenb sy Jo) saunby abeuuo) jeul| | ¥2E11 U0 S1I2UN0D 24 eyl Buibeinoaua sy ce1sem Gunahiaal uou jo abeuuol Buisealou

ayy 1anamoy 1abie] pua Jead 2yl 1939w 0] y2ed] Uo S| pa1a9o 2beuuol Jo puan 2yl 10 puaal apiw Aisnpu) ue s) auay ] aisem Buafoss uou 2y 01 Sa1e2 J0IEXPUL SIY L
(915102 €D) (aL/5L0Z €D)
:(paainbaui p) pasodosd uonoe aaRD110D :(1@1u00 buipnpul) aouewioliad JUD4IND U0 JUDWIUOD
a5 . Juawanoidwll Jo UoRIAIIP B m_» Pz PR POP T,
zaeak .munwm_m%hwm:m%nﬂuwwd hummﬂﬂh oT/sT/€D 9T/ST/TD 9T/ST/TO ST/PT/¥D ST/PT/ED ST/PT/TO ST/YT/TO #T/ET/¥D £T/ZT/vd ZU/TT/HD
3y} J0 pus ay} e . B . m 0
19w aq M 19618y mx oot - GLivLOZ  3=buel
au3 3eu3 1ol 3 S| oot B i i~
+ET 86T ST/PT/ED _m
£6€ 00+ ST/+T/+0 o
56 00T 91/5T/1D . [1-90€
£6T 66T 91/51/20 : “| oow
£6T BGT o1/51/ED
— DOS

[enioy 1abae) Japendy

s2ouewiopad siajienb snoiasad pue jusiand
ZY0F95 26610 uo auoydajal Ag Jo ynwob-opisasoibuiddai@eouewiopad uo pewa Ag nun weawasoidw) asuewiops 4 ayl 19e1u02 toledipul syl Buiprefisl sauinbus 104

"21ep 03 Jeahd au] 10} |E10] aAllE|NWND 3] Juasaidal pue
‘ployasnoy Jad swelbo|y Ul painseaw ale JOle3Ipul 51U} 10} s|ielap ajuewlopad pue s1abie) fgapyenp "Bunsodwoa pue Buiafoaal ‘asnal
alolW pue a1sem ||elano s5a| YyBnolyl ‘paloa||od alsem [ENPISal JO JUNOWeE 3L} Ul suonanpad suoddns Jojeaipul iUl :UCIIELWIOLL] [EUCIPPY

£12U3sip ayl uil pjoyasnoy Aiana Joj pajaajod sem a}sem pajafoal-uou yonw moH  LOOISN




weans sjsem uspiel pue poo) syl o 5141 UIYS 01 SUop 34 01 spasu
2U0|Y "WESNS SISEM [ENDIS3L SUL Ul S1SEM poo] J0 siEA3) weaubis uewss a1y

“SUIg ‘Buiseassap aie paadiad ag ued 1eyl sjeusiew jo wbem 2y

[EUNLULLIOD JO UOREUIWEIUOD JO anss| Ul sSsalppe 0] padapisucd Buieg aie saifeiens| | eyl Aisnpul 21sem auyl ssoide pasiubolsal s1y JaaamoH 2aueuuopad 12bie] mojaq 2yl Jog
“SlEUS1EW 210w 2124221 0] SUSPISa) J0) J3ISEa 1| 2¥ELW 0] S8l JO SY¥20|q Ul paanpolul sasned aul Alueuad yum yodal oy Ages 0o 51 Y passiw usaqg sey 1ebiel saauenb siy g
a4 [ sapael BunaAzes map pauued Bulag S1S10042S WOJL SU0IIIS|0D 1SEM pO0d JOIEIPU SIYL 10 3INjEU [BUOSEDS
‘apisgiay aul uo pa1a9)oa Buieg 2ue saiqeafoal jo abuel apimy SIYl JOg J21eD 0] ‘aigeuen aie sabie Apapenb syl janamoy “2p09 S 1abie] pua Jealk ay

(9L/51L0Z ED) (9L/51L0Z ED)

:(paainbaui p) pasodosd uonoe aaRD110D

:(1@1u00 buipnpul) aouewioliad JUD4IND U0 JUDWIUOD

Juawanoidwll Jo UoRIAIIP B m_« PPy o —

Op
. poob s1 pajafaal abejuasiad Jaybiyy

cleak : ot/sT/ed or/sT/TD oT/ST/TD ST/vT/vD ST/PT/ED ST/vT/TO ST/PT/TO PT/ET/HD EV/TT/FD TU/TLMFD
< :@sueuwopad pool Jo Jojeaipu) 0
au3l Jo pua 3y} e i ~ah
18w aq [im 196.1es ﬁua.am -GLirLlog  1=abiel o
au3 3eu2 Alaxi| 3 S| %00°08 - 9L/GLOZ  |ENUUY | wn
. O.
%0002  %Z0°T9 ST/FT/ED - @k
(ol
%ES'8S %0009 ST/FT/FD | oe
%00°T9  %ES5 +9 o1/ST/1D | g
0£°09  %ES'EY  9I/ST/EZD
H 05
%06°L5 %ISTO a1/51/ED
= = — = = 09
|enioy 12bae) Jayiend)

s2ouewiopad siajienb snoiasad pue jusiand

ZY0F95 26610 uo auoydajal Ag Jo ynwob-opisasoibuiddai@esuewiopad uo pewa Ag nun wewasoidw) asuewiops 4 ayl 19e1u02 1oiedipu syl Buiprefisl sauinbus 104

‘uonsabip si1goiaeue Jo Bunpsodwos ‘Bulafoal ‘asnal Joj) Juas sBulslie a1sem ployasnoy jo abejuasiad
ayl sainseall pue ‘palda||od I1SEM [ENPISaU JO JUNOWE a3 Ul suonanpad Jeaf uo Jeaf suoddns Jol1e21puUl SIYL (UOIEWIOU| [EUCRIPPY

épajsoduwod Jo pasnal ‘pajpAoal aq 0] Juas SeM a}sem pjoyasnoy |e jo abejuadiad Jeypn Z0OISN




Buues|a 1211 aasusiu
alow 1o} saunosal dn paad) sey yayw Buidaams eaueylzaw uo Ayoeded 1eieaab
moje oy Adauyaew u pabueyl e usaq sey 2uay ] Apuenpubis pasnoidwn sey sauenb

Jeak 311 10 1531 341 10 SNUIUo [m syl patediague siy Juswanoldu

syl u 2aueuopad aw pue 12edw ue apew aney saibaiens mau a4 (9L/S Loz o) wennubis apew aney Jan 2anpad o) 22ed wind saifeens ayl (9L/SLOE €0)

SIA .

cleak

3L} JO pu= 3y} e
19w aq [m 1abiey
a3 eyl a1l u s

:(paainbaui p) pasodosd uonoe aaRD110D

Juawanoidwll Jo UoRIAIIP B m_»

poob s| abBejuaziad Jamo|y
:asueuwlopad pool Jo Jojeaipu)

%ET

%TT

YTl

%8

%8

[enioy

%8 - SLirLOZ
%8 - 9L/5L02

%8
%8
%8
%82

g

12bae)

1abiel
|enuuy

ST/$T/ED
ST/%T/F0
91/ST/10D
91/51/20
91/51/€0

Jayiend)

:(1@1u00 buipnpul) aouewioliad JUD4IND U0 JUDWIUOD

soueunopad yebue) - cooran [

or/st/ed ou/fsT/zd ou/ST/TD ST/PT/vD ST/PT/ed SU/pT/ZO ST/PT/TO PU/ET/PD ELfZT/VD TU/IT/VD

@

s2ouewiopad siajienb snoiasad pue jusiand

ZY0F95 26610 uo auoydajal Ag Jo ynwob-opisasoibuiddai@esuewiopad uo pewa Ag nun wewasoidw) asuewiops 4 ayl 19e1u02 1oledipu syl Buiprefsl sauinbus 104

‘laa3] 2|qeidanae

3Ll paa2xa Yy21um 13311 Jo susodap uiim pue| Jueaslal jo abejualiad ay) syuasasdas pue Seaf yosea spouad A4auenb Jnoy JaAo0 N0 paliied
53315 paquasald jo sfanins uo paseq s SauUBWLIONad U21I] JO S|9A3] 2|geldaa2EUn 2INpPal 0} 54235 JOIE2IPUI SILL (UOIIELLIOU| [EUORIPPY

£49131] Jo sjana] ajqejdasaeun pey Joulsip ino jo abejuaociad JeypA £00ISN




SUYIUOLL M3] 1¥9U 341 JSA0 SIY] 995 pINOUS pasi|eal 34 0] Sl S10LW paau

am pue edw) ue pey sey Yyaym swoolg Eaueyisw u abueys e usag sey a18y Il ING USSS 89 0] papE]ls aaey sluswanoidw| Jead e jo 951n02 suy) 19A0 suonladsul
uawanoidw Jop seale Auspl o] s18240 1uno Ag Buuonuow 12E1U07 pasessIul [EnpIAIpUl 006 punole no Burliies Ag painsesw s) siueusopad COoIEN 93N 121SIg
‘WEIS Ul ANUUO? 2INSUS 0] BIE YIM }IOM 0} SNUU0d S1I9L0 (9L/510Z ED) U1 Ul SNLISP 10 |9A3] 2U) SI9A0D PUE E00 (3N 0 payul si 1961e] siyl (9L/51L0Z £D)

:(paainbaui p) pasodosd uonoe aaRD110D :(1@1u00 buipnpul) aouewioliad JUD4IND U0 JUDWIUOD

Juawanoidwll Jo UoRIAIIP B m_»

oN . souewioyiad 196ue) - pooran [
o poob si abejusalad JBMOIY  gy/cr/ed or/sT/zd ST/ST/TO ST/PT/VD ST/VT/ED SI/PT/ZO ST/PT/TO PU/ST/VD EL/ZT/WD TU/TT/HD
< :@suewlouad pool Jo Jojeaipu) 0
U3 Jo pua ayi e 3B
19W ag [|m u.mmh.ﬂm. %OL-SLivLOS A2RJEeL I%
a3 eyl Kiexil 3 | %0l - 8L/5l0oz  [ENULY
A %6 %01 ST/+T/ED -%.
9l 50T ST/FT/+0 -8
(e = = = & = (1} 4
Yot 1 50T 91/5T/TD
— TE
%h5T 50T 91/51/20 ve
Bt 20T 91/ST/ED —{ o1
-_— |enioy 19bue) Japiend) — BE

s2ouewiopad siajienb snoiasad pue jusiand

ZY0F95 26610 uo auoydajal Ag Jo ynwob-opisasoibuiddai@esuewiopad uo pewa Ag nun wewasoidw) asuewiops 4 ayl 19e1u02 1oiedipu syl Buiprefisl sauinbus 104

‘12A3] a|qeldanoe au) paadxs
L21ym sniLep 1o susodap yum puel ueas|al jo abejuaziad auy syussaidal pue Yeaf yoes spouad Auanenb anoy syl J2A0 IN0 palLlies s3)s
paquasald jo sfaains uo paseq sl 2aUBWIONad "SNILISP JO 5|2A3] 2qeldasseun aanpad 0} 54235 JOIE2IPUI SIUL (UOIIEWLIOU| [EUSRIPPY

il 212 onseyd ‘sse|b ‘sanes|

pajol ‘sauols ‘pnu ‘Isnp) snjulap jo sjana] ajgejdasoeun pey joulsip dno jo abejuadsiad jeUypA POOISN




shep Bupiom © uiynm asuodsa
[EIPUI UE PRAIDI3S SIUlE|dwWwo) pUE SaNss! FLEE JO IN0 £6ZE "panaiyle 1abiel (91/510z D)

:(paainbaui p) pasodosd uonoe aaRD110D :(1@1u00 buipnpul) aouewioliad JUD4IND U0 JUDWIUOD

. Juawanoidwll Jo UoRIAIIP B m_ﬁ PPy o p—"
S3A
e poob si sbejus0sad JSUBIUY  gp/cr/ety or/sT/zd OT/ST/TO ST/VT/VD ST/PT/ED ST/VT/ZO ST/VT/TD WI/ET/VD SLIZI/VD TU/TT/VD
< :@suewlouad pool Jo Jojeaipu) Iy
au3 Jo pua auy e E i
15w 3¢ (M 36183 %00'66 - SLIPLOZ  ‘1abiel
au3 3eu3 Kol 31 s woOne-SMAHE  JEhuly ©
: - P
%95°L6 %0056  ST/¥I/ED %
@©
%IS'Z6  9%00°'S6  ST/FI/FD H B
%EZ96  %00°56  9T/SL/ID
- 06
I6°S6 %R00°S6  9L/ST/ZD
%9t 96 %0056 91/51/ED & 3 = & & = & & = & - 56
|enioy 1abaey Japendy

s2ouewiopad siajienb snoiasad pue jusiand

ZY0F95 26610 uo auoydajal Ag Jo ynwob-opisasoibuiddai@eouewiopad uo pewa Ag nun wewasoidw) asuewiops 4 ayl 1961002 1ojedipu syl Buiprefisl sauinbus 104

skep Buidom aaiyl
uIylm 01 papuodsal ale ey} weal spooouinogyfiany pue uawuodiaug ayl fg paniasal siuejdwos pue pasied sanssi jo abeluasiad auyy
SaINsealw JOJE2IPUI SIY) PUE ‘BAlERIUI JBUsalD ‘Jauea|D Ua)es, 3yl Jo Juawa|a fay e s1 ,2WLd-0JAUS3, Yiim Buljeaq :uonewlou] [EUoRIppy

éshAep ¢ ulyum asuodsal [erjiul ue panladal wWea|

spoowanoqubiap 9 JuawuoliAug ayj Aq paaisdal sjuiejdwiod pue sanssi ayj jo abejuasiad Jeypn SO0ISN




“Jaunoo Ayl 01 pauodal usaq SeY USpIaul
ay1 1aue Aep Bupiom mau ayl 2auswiwod eys pouad Aep Buniom a2yl 2y Aep Bupuom
E 10U 2Je sAeploH yueg ansnaul Aepud o1 Aepuoly jo suo Aue st Aep Bupniomy G

‘papiolal Bueg di-Ag 2yl Jo sAep Bupgom © uiygum 24am pouad sy
pajebinsanul 219m ey} Buiddi-Ay jo suapiaul g/£ 10 61E panayae 1ebiel (9L/5L0Z ED)

:(paainbaui p) pasodosd uonoe aaRD110D :(1@1u00 buipnpul) aouewioliad JUD4IND U0 JUDWIUOD

. Juawanoidwll Jo UoRIAIIP B m_« PP o pp—"
=78
e poob si sbejus0sad JSUBIUY  gp/cr/ety or/sT/zd OT/ST/TO ST/VT/VD ST/PT/ED ST/VT/ZO ST/VT/TD WI/ET/VD SLIZI/VD TU/TT/VD
< :@suewlouad pool Jo Jojeaipu) Iy
U3 Jo pua ayi e i :
18w aq [im 196.1es %0006 - SLivLOZz  13biel N~
au3 3eu2 Alaxi| 3 S| %0006 - 9LISLOZ  |enuuy (o))
it E6 %0006  ST/PL/ED ©
(a
%RO00'ES %0006 ST/FT/+0 — 58
%SE°S6 %0006 9T/SL/ID
e = = = = = = & —{ D6
SHREE'S6  TROD06  9L/ST/ZD
%EZEPE  %W00'06  9T/ST/ED — 56
|enioy 12bae) Jayiend)

s2ouewiopad siajienb snoiasad pue jusiand

ZY0F95 26610 uo auoydajal Ag Jo ynwob opisaloibuiddai@esuewiopad uo pewa Ag nun wewasoidw) asuewiops 4 ayl 1981002 toledipul syl Buiprefisl sauinbus 104

‘(Ale1eIpaww paJea|2 ag 0} ajseMm 3yl aqinbal Jeyl s1039e) 13130 3l 2434) s53|un) pajeBisaaul [pun pafelsp
S| @aueles|D "aw jeyl 1k sanuoud pue salinosal 03 123lgns ‘paiebisanul 24e 31sEM 3] JO 92IN0S 3L 0] PES| UED JEY] 32UapIA3 aaey few
JEYL SIUSPI2U] 32L3sIp aul ul puel a3eald pue angnd uo punoy o pauodal siuapiaul Buiddi-fi3 (e 12151634 Weal UL (UCIIEULIOU| [EUDIIPPY

épapiodsal Bulaq jo

sAep buppom ¢ uiyum pajebnsanul aje buiddn-Ay jJo sasuapioul paplolal ayj jo abejuadiad jJeypn 90013N




‘shep Bupiom ¢ 1o 19618] U1 LIYNM 12B11U0D 31SEM
au Japun pasea)d asam suapiul (%68 06) 05T 10 60F panaiyle 1abiiel (9L/51L0Z £D)

:(paainbaui p) pasodosd uonoe aaRD110D :(1@1u00 buipnpul) aouewioliad JUD4IND U0 JUDWIUOD

. Juawanoidwll Jo UoRIAIIP B m_ﬁ PPy o —
S3A
e poob si sbejus0sad JSUBIUY  gp/cr/ety or/sT/zd OT/ST/TO ST/VT/VD ST/PT/ED ST/VT/ZO ST/VT/TD WI/ET/VD SLIZI/VD TU/TT/VD
< :@suewlouad pool Jo Jojeaipu) Iy
au3 Jo pua auy e : :
15w 3¢ (M 36183 %00°06 - SLiFLOZ  :13Biel
au1 38y 1@l 3 5| %00°06 - 3Li§L0Z  I[ENULY 0
: —
%2006 %0006  ST/¥I/ED %
@©
L6406 %0006 ST/FT/+0 — &
%F8 06 %0006  9T/SL/ID
[ = s g 2 S— & — 06
IFE6 0006 9L/ST/ZD
%%68°06 %00°06  9I/ST/ED — &6
|enioy 1abaey Japendy

s2ouewiopad siajienb snoiasad pue jusiand

ZY0F95 26610 uo auoydajal Ag Jo ynwob-opisasoibuiddai@esuewiopad uo pewa Ag nun wewasoidw) asuewiops 4 ayl 19e1u02 1oiedipu syl Buiprefisl sauinbus 104

JoenU02 31sem BunsiXe a3 JSpUn paJes|d ag ued y21ym pue Buues|s
10} ajqisuodsald s1 12UNO2 SYI Y2IUM PUE] UO IN220 Yy21ym suapiaul di-f13 siapisuoa feayaads Jojeaipul SiLUL (UoREWIOU| [EUCIPRY

ipaplooal buiaqg jo sAep Bunpiom

G UM panowal ale (paleap 1oenuod) buiddy-AY jJo sajuapioul paplodal ay} jo abejuadiad Jeypp J0013N




sl s1y1 1e pauueld s uonoe
SAIIIBLI0D 1BYUN] O " LD Ul JUSWSASIYIE 19pun syl o1 anp 196181 9406 SUl Moaq (s

S| [E10] SAIENWND 3Y) jesaao 1ng ‘1abie1 ayy pansiy2e (suoe) ¢ sauenb pajiadie sy

(262 1°96) 1961e] 3UL UIUNM PRIES|D 3JaM £81 JO 1IN0

SjUaPIZUL G/ | “JusWBAcadwWl JeIluIS B MOUS GL/ZL/LE 01 GL/0L/LO Suole €D Jo} saunfy aul
(1o w9z 19 uum pasedwod %56 06) 196181 Ul PaA3IUIe ‘GL/6/0E 01 GL/LO/LO — SUOje
20 ‘pouad 2w jo ped puoias auyl 10) saunbil aU )l ED W Pl 219M SaNSs| 353y |

2IEMUOS S,12UN0T SUl Yum pereabeiul

washs sy441g uaym Aeanewoine dn payad Buag jou aiam sisanbal 22ueies|d awos
UESLW Yaym walgosd [BaUy29]1 B paUnUSpl OS1E a0 T2IUSWLLOD UED YIoM S0UBlEa|D
alolaq 21onb eucippe ue ainbad 1eyy sdi-Ay awos Guoadsu pue uo Buissed ul Bopyaeq
B Ul paynsad siyl -sa1nos/sAEp UonaS||00 S1SEM ployasnoy swos u 26ueys aul pue w4419
LUM SSNNWLP S|geiapisuc paousuadie am LD Ul 2D pue Lo 10) e1ep au1 Buipniow
2inbiy anEINWNg B S0 101 B1ep SanamoH (%9 se) sluapiaul 909 10 1no ‘sAep Buiom
01 UIyum paIe3a|d 219m SIUSPIIUl 6L "PIASIYIE Uaaq Jou sey 19biel ay) (91L/SL0Z £D)

:(paainbaui p) pasodosd uonoe aaRD110D

Juawanoidwll Jo UoRIAIIP B m_«

:(1@1u00 buipnpul) aouewioliad JUD4IND U0 JUDWIUOD

souewopad 13bue) - gooran [

ieusaun
: LM poob si sbejus0sad JSUBIUY  gp/cr/ety or/sT/zd OT/ST/TO ST/VT/VD ST/PT/ED ST/VT/ZO ST/VT/TD WI/ET/VD SLIZI/VD TU/TT/VD
< :@suewlouad pool Jo Jojeaipu) g

3U3 Jo pua ayl e 2 36 =
18w aq [im 196.1es %00°06 - GL/i¥LOZ  3SbJeL B W
au3 3eu2 Alaxi| 3 S| %0006 - 9L/5LOZ  lenuuy Im.
%B86°06  %00°06  ST/FI/ED | mm.
— op
%58°06 %0006  ST/FI /%D —| sp
—| o8
%eL L9 %0006  9T/ST/TD =4 H
: L —| 59
%818 %0006  9I/51/Z0 | oz
— &L
%$9°58 %0006  9T/ST/ED —| 08
—| 58
jenoy 1obue] 1puend) = = 3 =g i3 i3 & = H
— pox

s2ouewiopad siajienb snoiasad pue jusiand

ZY0F95 26610 uo auoydajal Ag Jo ynwob-opisasoibuiddai@esuewiopad uo pewa Ag nun wewasoidw) asuewiops 4 ayl 19e1u02 1oiedipu syl Buiprefisl sauinbus 104

"20UEJES|D JDEIILOI-UOL JSYJ0 JO JIBPJ0 UDIELIEA [euDilIppE ue annbal y21ym pue Bulea|s
10} ajqisuodsald s1 12UNO2 SYI Y2IUM PUE] UO IN220 Yy21ym suapiaul di-f13 siapisuoa fjeaaads Jojeaipul SiLUL (UoREWIOU| [EUCIPRY

ale (Joenjuod-uou J Japio uoneuea) buiddy-AY jo sa>uapioul paplodal ay} jo abejuadiad Jeypp 80013N

ipapiodnal Bulaq Jo sAep BuDOM Q] UILIIM parowal




(%Z5°06) S2INUIW G1 UIunm ¥2eq ||e2 B panadal pue 1abie) syl paasiyde s|ied JZ¢ 10 962

‘panaiyle ulaq sey 1abisel ayl (915102 £D)

:(paainbaui p) pasodosd uonoe aaRD110D :(1@1u00 buipnpul) aouewioliad JUD4IND U0 JUDWIUOD

Juawanoidwll Jo UoRIAIIP B m_«

- . souew.opad 136e) - gooran [
e poob si sbejus0sad JSUBIUY  gp/cr/ety or/sT/zd OT/ST/TO ST/VT/VD ST/PT/ED ST/VT/ZO ST/VT/TD WI/ET/VD SLIZI/VD TU/TT/VD
< :@suewlouad pool Jo Jojeaipu) Iy
U3 Jo pua ayi e i 236
18w aq [im 196.1es %00°06 - GL/i¥LOZ  3SbJeL
au3 3eu3 Kol 31 s wOOoa-SMAHE  JEhuly o
| e
%TS'06 %0006  ST/FI/ED o)
O.
il TE %0006 ST/FT/+0 — %
%08 /8 %0006  9T/SL/1ID
€. = i = = = = & —{ D6
BREDTE  %RO006  9L/ST/ZD
%2506  %00'06  9I/ST/ED — 56
|enioy 12bae) Jayiend)

s2ouewiopad siajienb snoiasad pue jusiand

ZY0F95 26610 uo auoydajal Ag Jo ynwob-opisasoibuiddai@eouewiopad uo pewa Ag nun wewasoidw) asuewiops 4 ayl 19e1u02 1oledipu syl Buiprefisl sauinbus 104

Jueuieidwos ay) pauoydalal sey J22140 asiou AInp 2yl usym apew uasq sey asuodsal
v 3ueuieidwos ay) sauoydalal oum 122140 asiou finp ayl 03 passed pue Ja2140 Ag-puels s,1aunos au3 fg paplosal ale s|jen (puayaam auyy
1B 00:0L 240)30 PUE D000 J2UE 321A19s fauabiawa pajalsal) sinoy #2 51 siulejdwos asiou o) 321A135 INO|[ED SUL (UCIIEULIOU| [EUDIIPRY

£SalNUIU S UIylM 0] papuodsal aie sjulejdwod asiou (HOQ) sinoy jo 1no jo abejuadiad Jeypp 60013N




“a1el uonadwos e asjueienb

10UUED 1 ‘suorssilgad Jusauns spuelb 1aunoD Ul i USAS 1Bl sueSw s1y | saoud
fuadoud Buisuy jo abejueape ayer o1 A1 pue yem Aew siadojaaap se 23uslwo )

10u Aew syaaload eyl ueaw wued ayiew Buisnoy a4l Jo 2181s 2yl ‘uolssiwad Buuued
uanb s1 aus e 1 uaag paladwod 2ue A3yl USUM pue |l |o0uo 3 1ouued 3 os ‘sBulamp
2y} Jo Auolew 1sea 2yl ping Ajenioe 10U S30P 11 INg )2 ueld [e307 au) uBnoayy
suonezo)e aus Buisnoy nbe1ens Buew ‘uoissiwsad Buuued Bunuelb Ag sBunEmp
10 Buiping a1ow 2beinoaua ued 1punoD ay ] siebiel Bugsasw sainby uonasdwos
Buisnoy Jano 2ausnjiul paUwW  sey |1I2unos 20l 184l 210U o Juepodun si

“awn siy1 e pasodoad suop - (91L/51L0Z D)

‘ueld jeao Buibiaws 2y w
suoneubisap Buisnoy mau yBnoiyl apew a9 m wuawdoEasp Buisnoy saning Jo) Uolsiaold

S)Un [euoppe oz Jo suonsdwos Buisnoy 91510z Jol 196ie] enuuy
1IN0 193w o] AEYIUn 20E a0 1EY] S21E2IPUL 1 pUE “ED Woll 3seaiiap & 5 aunby ¢o ino
“LOL s aunby aaeinwna Apauenb ano pue ‘Lz s 2anby 14y ¢ Jauent ano — (915 L0E £0)

:(paainbaui p) pasodosd uonoe aaRD110D

Juawanoidwll Jo UoRIAIIP B m_«

:(1@1u00 buipnpul) aouewioliad JUD4IND U0 JUDWIUOD

souewopad 1@hie) - otoran [

oM
: LM POOR S118qunU IBUBIUY  gp/cr/et or/sT/zd ST/ST/TO ST/VT/VD ST/VTIED ST/VT/ZO ST/VE/TO PL/ET/VD SL/ZTTVD TH/TTIVD
< :@suewlouad pool Jo Jojeaipu) 0
3y} Jo pusa ayi e ! ~
18w aq [im 31961e) 02z - GLivLoz  aebael o
au1 18U 1@l 3 5| 0£Z - 9lisloz  IEnUUY I -n__..u
A - 18T G60T ST/FT/ED | .@
O
- 6ZZ DEE ST/FT/+0 /w '
= 5]
- DOT
. 8t 0L 91/5T/TD
ST 4
- 08 [ 8} 91/51/20
- DOE
- 10T Z8T 91/ST/ED
4 |enioy 12bae) Jayiend) |0
— pow

s2ouewiopad siajienb snoiasad pue jusiand

ZY0F95 26610 uo auoydajal Ag Jo ynwob-opisasoibuiddai@esuewiopad uo pewa Ag nun wewasoidw) asuewiops 4 ayl 19e1u02 1oledipu syl Buiprefisl sauinbus 104

‘a1ep 01 Jeak au3 10} [E10] SAREINWND

ay3 juasaidal J0le21pUl SI1Y] 10} SlIEIRP S2uewdopad pue s1abiey Aapenp Jeaf auo JaA0 Y2035 Buljlamp Ul 25SE3J2UI 19U 3] s3inseaw
pue ‘sanssi fngepioye Buisnoy wisl-buo| ssaippe 0} sawoy mau jo Aiddns Jaje2.16 e sabeinoausa Jole2Ipul SILUL (UOIEWIOLU| [EUCIPRY

£19UISIp 2y} Ul Sawoy Jo Jaquinu 3y} Ul 8Sealdap 10 asealoul }au ay} sem JeuypA 0LOISN




‘paEoAUl Al1230100U) USad PEY Yym JesLe
g1=p Jabie Jop ABsrens uo jebia) pue 3JuBUl YIM afue Apenoaued auo papualle os|e a0 “Uosiel ueual Jaieallb pue sbunaaw sieaue

Bupiom pue Aajod sio01gap Jo malaad Jo awono Gumeme Auaund (9L/S Loz o) Jeinfal jo ynsal e se fued o4y A=1ewxoidde Ag painpal sey 1a2p 2UL(9L/S L0z £0)

:(paainbaui p) pasodosd uonoe aaRD110D

:(1@1u00 buipnpul) aouewioliad JUD4IND U0 JUDWIUOD

Juawanoidwll Jo UoRIAIIP B m_» PPy o p—

534
. poob s| abBejuaziad Jamo|y

cieak ) or/st/ed oufst/Td or/sT/TD ST/PT/vD ST/vT/ed ST/eT/TO SU/vT/TO PU/ET/Pd Ev/IT/vd Tr/Ti/vd
< :@suewlouad pool Jo Jojeaipul 0
au3l Jo pua 3y} e : 236

au3 yeus A1ax1 3 s %0°€ - 9Li5Loz  [ENULY = & & & & S e 8 & N
i I~z
%S %0°€ ST/¥1/€0 @
O.
9%E'S %0°E ST/+1/+0 Dnm
— 0¥

e %0 € o1/5T/1D

Bl ¥ 50" E 91/ST/ZD
— S¥

9%9'Z %%0"E a1/51/ED

|enioy 12bae) Jayiend)

s2ouewiopad siajienb snoiasad pue jusiand

ZY0F95 26610 uo auoydajal Ag Jo ynwob-opisasoibuiddai@eouewiopad uo pewa Ag nun wewasoidw) asuewiops 4 ayl 19e1u02 1oledipu syl Buipiefial sauinbus 104
‘s1seq Aldauenb

e uo papodal 51 103e21pul S1Y3 3suehe asuewlopad 1I9UN0D a4l 0} awoaul wenodwi Jo uoiaa||02 ayy Buloluow Ul 535155 pue oljouod
fuadoad s31 40y 321n095 fUaA023) Slealle pUe L0230 JUSL 5, MILIOUINE [E20] B 40 SINSESW B 5] JOJEIIPUI SILUL (UOIEWIOLU| [EUCIPRY

ipied jou sem sasiwaid [eIawwod no Joj pied aq 0] anp aiam am jual ayj jo abejuasiad JeypAa  LLOISN




‘1ane] uo palulodde

Buiaq 1o ssa20ud W) pue Jauuol uo pauiodde mou sjusby 29y Weyyew 2snoyiH ‘diysiaumo 5,2043 ul 12buo) ou sapadoad anowsad 01 papuawe Buleg Blep
pue IH poovyeD Aempeoig a4l viL-21 e sbuma) yum ssauboid (915 L0 €0) 01 anp painpald sey 21el Aauelea (eiano JanamoH sswadord Jueaen ¢ (9L/SLOZ €0
:(paainbaui p) pasodosd uonoe aaRD110D :(1@1u00 buipnpul) aouewioliad JUD4IND U0 JUDWIUOD
. Juawanoidwll Jo UoRIAIIP B m_« PPy o —
534
e poob si sbejus0sad JSUBIUY  gp/cr/ety or/sT/zd OT/ST/TO ST/VT/VD ST/PT/ED ST/VT/ZO ST/VT/TD WI/ET/VD SLIZI/VD TU/TT/VD
< :@suewlopad pool Jo Jojeaipu)
3L} JO pu= 3y} e i 2 mmv
15w 3¢ (M 396IE] %00°86 - SLIPLOZ  1@bueL =)
ay3 1eu3 .m._mu___ U S| %0086 - 9L/SLOT lenuuy -~
%IE" 86 %%00°86 ST/FT/ED a.
(a
L8686 %0086 ST/FTL/FD - 58
L8686 %0086  9L/ST/TD
- D6
HEEeE  00°86  91/51/2D
6886 %R00°86  OI/ST/ED H &6
lenjoy 1ebae) Japiend e = 3 = == = = e B

s2ouewiopad siajienb snoiasad pue jusiand

ZY0F95 26610 uo auoydajal Ag Jo ynwob-opisasoibuiddai@esuewiopad uo pewa Ag nun wewasoidw) asuewiops 4 ayl 19e1u02 1oiedipu syl Buiprefisl sauinbus 104

'siseq Alaauenb e uo pauodads 51 J01e21pUl 51U} IsUIERE aaueWIOLSd "oljojod [BLIISNPUI PUE [BI2J3WILIOI §,]12UN0D 33 4o AIelA 3yl
Jojiuow o3 sdjay pue uopaun} juswabeuew }asse s, MLIoLINE [220] B3 JO SSAUSAR2SYS SLY} SI0UOL JOIEDIPUI SILL UOIEWIOLU] |EUCIPRY

£ Slueua} o] }a] sem sasiwaid [eoJawwiod ino jo abejuaociad Jeypda ZLOISN




This page is intentionally left blank



Epping Forest  Key Performance Indicator
District Council Improvement Plan 201516

NEIO2  What percentage of all household waste was sent to be recycled, reused or

composted?
Outturn Target
2012/13 201314 2014/15 20116
59.14% 59.00% 58.53% 60.00%

Responsible Officer

Derek Macnab
Director of Neighbourhoods

Improvement Action Target Dates Key Measures /
Milestones
Collection calendar to every household October 2015 Delivery of new
around publicity on recycling of textiles, collection calendar

batteries and small WEEE electrical items

Review Policy options for dealing with Policy review  Policy agreed
situations when dry recycling (cans, paper, by Cabinet in
cardboard plastic containers and glass December

bottles) are presented in the residual waste 2015
stream (black lidded wheelie bin) and what

actions could be taken to encourage

residents to avail the recycling services

offered at the door step

Use of community events to publicize the ongoing Attendance at events
materials and extent of recycling in the
district

Page 105



Please detail any budget or resource implications of the improvement actions you
have listed overleaf. Please quantify any additional resources which will be required
to implement the improvements and detail how the additional resources will be
allocated.

At this stage no additional budget is envisaged however some reallocation of budgets
within Waste Management Service may be required to rationalise expenditure, for
example to carry out additional publicity

Please describe any contextual factors, internal or external, which may impact upon
the ability to deliver the improvements listed.

Waste analyses have repeatedly shown that some residents do not make full use of the
door step recycling services. Recycling performance has dipped in some other local
Essex authorities.

Epping Forest
District Council

Page 106



Epping Forest  Key Performance Indicator
District Council Improvement Plan 201516

NEIO4  What percentage of our district had unacceptable levels of detritus(dust,

mud, stones, glass etc.)?

Outturn
2012/13 201314 2014/15
9% 9% 11%

Responsible Officer

Derek Macnab
Director of Neighbourhoods

Improvement Action Target Dates

Joint inspections with Biffa will take place October 2015
when assessing this KPI — regular monitoring  January 2016
of all zones after cleansing to ensure

standards are reached subject to workload

and collection problems

Development of a computer App for October 2015
monitoring streets

Target
20116
10%

Key Measures /
Milestones

Reduction in detritus

Reduce double
handing/input of data
collected

Please detail any budget or resource implications of the improvement actions you
have listed overleaf. Please quantify any additional resources which will be required
to implement the improvements and detail how the additional resources will be

allocated.

No impact envisaged

Page 107



Please describe any contextual factors, internal or external, which may impact upon
the ability to deliver the improvements listed.

Now that the refuse and recycling collection services are beginning to normalise it
should be possible to refocus on this Indicator and increase the performance to meet
and exceed the target.

Epping Forest
District Council

Page 108



Epping Forest  Key Performance Indicator
District Council Improvement Plan 2015/16

NEIO8 What percentage of the recorded incidences of fly-tipping
(variation order / non-contract) are removed within 10
working days of being recorded?

Outturn Target
2012/13 201¥14 2014/15 201516
NEW KPI 96% 91% 90%

Responsible Officer

Derek Macnab
Director of Neighbourhoods

Improvement Action Target Key Measures /
Dates Milestones
eg. Implement postal campaigns to 14th July Increased rate of
encourage take up of direct debit council tax 2015 and council tax collection
payments at end of Q1 & Q3 14th January  atend of Q2 and Q4
2016

Target achieved 2014/15. A new system of Target Target aimed to ensure
recording fly-tips and clearance data has monitored on that large or hazardous
been implemented to integrate with BIFFA. a weekly fly-tip deposits (that
This has enabled a standard report to be basis and cannot be cleared
produced that automatically identifies reported at under the waste
potential service failures or errors in data. each quarter  contract) are quickly
We are hoping to implement officer mobile cleared and any delay
reporting, to further speed up the process of identified and
clearance immediately after an inspection challenged.

for evidence has been completed.

Page 109



Please detail any budget or resource implications of the
improvement actions you have listed overleaf. Please quantify any
additional resources which will be required to implement the
improvements and detail how the additional resources will be
allocated.

Please describe any contextual factors, internal or external, which
may impact upon the ability to deliver the improvements listed.

Epping Forest
District Council

Page 110



Epping Forest
District Council

Key Performance Indicator
Improvement Plan 2015/16

NEI10 What was the net increase or decrease in the number of

homes in the District?

Outturn
2012/13 2013/14
115 299

Responsible Officer

Derek Macnab
Director of Neighbourhoods

Improvement Action

There are no specific improvements
planned, partly because performance
in the 2014/15 year was only one unit
short of the target, and partly because
the Council does not have much
control over the outcome of this
indicator, as it does not have control
over how many housing units are built
in the district. Obviously the Council
can encourage more building of
dwellings by granting planning
permission, making strategic housing
site allocations through the Local Plan
etc., but it does not actually build the
vast majority of the dwellings, so it
cannot control if and when they are
completed. Even if a site is given

Target
2014/15 2015/16
229 230
Target Key Measures /
Dates Milestones
n/a n/a

Page 111



planning permission, the state of the
housing market can mean that at
times, housebuilders will not complete
units they have permission to build, if
it is felt that they will not be sold. This
means that even if the Council grants
sufficient permissions, it cannot
guarantee a completion rate.

Please detail any budget or resource implications of the
improvement actions you have listed overleaf. Please quantify any
additional resources which will be required to implement the
improvements and detail how the additional resources will be
allocated.

n/a

Please describe any contextual factors, internal or external, which
may impact upon the ability to deliver the improvements listed.

n/a

Epping Forest
District Council

Page 112



Agenda Item 12

Report to: Neighbourhoods and
Communities Select Committee

Date of Meeting: 15 March 2016 S C RUT' N Y

Portfolio: Safer, Greener and Transport (Councillor Epping Forest District Council
G. Waller)

Subject: Key Performance Indicators 2016/17 — Review and Targets
Officer contact for further information: B. Copson (01992 564042)

Democratic Services Officer: Adrian Hendry (01992 564246)

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

That the Select Committee considers the proposed Key Performance Indicators and
targets for 2016/17 for those areas which fall within the Committee’s areas of
responsibility, and provide comment for the Finance and Performance Management
Cabinet Committee as appropriate.

Executive Summary:

The Council is required to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way
in which its functions and services are exercised, having regard to a combination of
economy, efficiency and effectiveness. To assist with this a range of Key Performance
Indicators (KPI) relevant to the Council’s service priorities and key objectives, are adopted
each year and targets set which are appropriate and challenging.

Reasons for Proposed Decision:

The KPIs provide an opportunity for the Council to focus attention on how specific areas for
improvement will be addressed, and how opportunities will be exploited and better outcomes
delivered. It is important that the key performance indicators are reviewed annually to ensure
their continued relevance and that their targets are appropriate and challenging.

Other Options for Action:

No other options are appropriate in this respect. Failure to identify challenging performance
targets, could mean that opportunities for improvement are lost and might have negative
implications for judgements made about the progress of the Council.

Report:

1) The adoption of challenging but achievable KPIs each year is an important element of
the Council’s Performance Management Framework, and the KPI set is reviewed annually by
Management Board to ensure the indicators and their targets are appropriate to provide
challenge in the Council’s key areas and to meet its objectives.

2) Whilst the recent annual review considered that the current indicator set was
appropriate to provide challenge and improvement, a number of changes to targets have

Page 113



been identified for the coming year, and one indicator has been split to enable greater focus
and evaluation.

3) The provisional target for each indicator has been identified by service directors and
relevant portfolio holder(s), based on third-quarter performance (and the estimated outturn
position) for the current year. Management Board will review the provisional targets against
outturn data for 2015/16 when this becomes available, and any revisions to next year's
targets will be reported to the appropriate select committees in June 2016.

4) The review of the KPIs which fall within the areas of responsibility of the
Neighbourhoods and Community Services Select Committee has resulted in a number of
changes, the details of which are set out below and more fully in the attached appendix:

a) NEIO05 Complaints response times

b) NEIO06 Fly-tipping response times } targets have been increased
c) NEIO11 Commercial rents

d) NEIO02 Recycling - has been deleted and replaced by:

e) NEIO13 Household waste - recycling NEW INDICATOR

f) NEIO14 Household waste - composting NEW INDICATOR

5) Improvement plans will be developed for each KPI for 2016/17, identifying actions to
achieve target performance. The plans will be considered and agreed by Management
Board, and submitted to the relevant select committees along with the 2016/17 first quarter
performance submission.

6) The Select Committee is requested to consider the proposed KPIs and targets for
2016/17 which fall within its areas of responsibility. These will also be considered by the
Finance and Performance Management Cabinet Committee at its meeting on 17 March 2016,
and the views of the Select Committee will be reported to the Cabinet Committee.

Resource Implications:
Resource requirements for actions to achieve specific KPI performance for 2016/17 will have
been identified by the responsible service director and reflected in the budget for the year.

Legal and Governance Implications:
None arising from the recommendations of this report; implications of actions to achieve KPI
performance for 2016/17 will be identified by the responsible service director.

Safer, Cleaner, Greener Implications:
None arising from the recommendations of this report; implications of actions to achieve KPI
performance for 2016/17 will be identified by the responsible service director.

Consultation Undertaken:

Draft KPIs and targets have been proposed by service directors in consultation with relevant
portfolio holder(s), and considered by Management Board. They will be considered by the
Finance and Performance Management Cabinet Committee on 17 March 2016.

Background Papers:
Third quarter KPI submissions held by the Performance Improvement Unit.

Page 114



Impact Assessments:

Risk Management

None arising from the recommendations of this report; issues arising from actions to achieve
KPI performance for 2016/17 will be identified by the responsible service director.

Equality:

None arising from the recommendations of this report; implications arising from actions to
achieve KPI performance for 2016/17 will be identified by the responsible service director.

Page 115



This page is intentionally left blank



1061e)]
anoge
SION9| %T = ¢Jan Jo
9T/ST0Z 01 Xoeq mEmEm>9.o_E_ Buiyeas uo Buisnooy soueIa[0) sjona) ageIdaaseun
ale SI21JO JUBID 3ISe\ “Sluswabuelre uooa||09 ON %8 %8 €00I3N
lagquy pey 191SIp N0
91SEM PasIAal Ul ISISSE 0] S82IN0Sal J0 82uabianip ayl
Jo abejuaaiad eyM
Aq pa1aje usaq sey aouewlouad Buisues|d 1901S
%8
19612)
Mmojsq ¢parsodwoo
"suonouny aysem Bunsodwod pue BuipAdal %00°¢ = 10 pasnal ‘pajokoal
ay1 o Bunesedss ($TOIIN pue £TOIFN) Sioredlpul Z T %06°LS %00°09 8 01 1uas sem | Z0OIaN
yum paoe|dal pue /T/9T0Z o} palajap ag 0} J0lealpu] lsquy 91seM pjoyasnoy [je
Jo abejuaaiad reym
%
190.18)
MoJaq
‘pa1e|dwod sI uonelado %S = ¢PUISIP
JO SyIUOW 8T [|N} B 82U 8T/LTOZ Ul POMBIABI pue SoUeIol0) 162 0ov St} Ul PIossnoy
’ ) ON Jaquiy K1ans 1o} pa129]|0d | TOOIAN
S|9A8| JUB.IND Je paurelal si 1ebie] ay) eyl pasodold ()Y ()Y
SI )1 sjuswalbuelle pasiAal 3yl JO UoNoONPOAUI Y YIAA sem aisem pajakoal
o : . : : 00¥ -uou yonw MmoH
61
S92IAJI8S Allunww o) pue ajeloldalig spooylnoqybiaN
aouewJiopiad ON/SOA ,T/9T02
ul suononpaJ pajabiel 1oy suoseal pue LT/9T0Z pabueys | 196uel mocmEBtWa ww\%ﬁow uondiiosaq jod
10} 196161 pasodoud 1o} uonealnsnl/sijuswwo) 196.1e] | pasodoid ot/s10c € ! 1 Id™
T Xilpuaddy (ODSN) s18b6ue] pue mainay - /T/9T0Z SJ101edIpu| 8oueWI0)Iad A

Page 117



1961€) -¢pue| paumo
Mojaq Aareand Jo ongnd
%00°'T = uo si dn-Aj ay1 ataym
2ouelI9|0] papJooal buiaq di-Aj)
‘pasodoud sI arepljosuod 01 JquIY . . ay1 Jo sAep Bunjiom
aseaIdUI 94z © pue 1aBIe) PAPaaIXa Sey dduewopad | oA %CE6 %00°06 | o yyum parebnsanur | 20013N
aJe Bbuiddn
-A}} JO saduapIoUI
%00°C6 papJiodal syl
Jo abejusalad yeym
1068 iskep €
Mmofeq uIyum asuodsal fenui
. %00'T = ue panIgdal wea |
SIY1 urejurew 0] aAJSS ||IM 8SBaIoUl G0 © Hwﬂwﬁwwm%ﬁ SOA ALIEISI0} %91'96 %00°S6 spooyinoqybiaN S00IaN
SI I pUe ¢ ul 19b1B} PaPaBIXa SeY SOUBWIONS ioquiv ’ ’ ? JUSLUUOIIAUT Bu) Ag
11 pue 9T/GTOC ull 1pap Yy Had peniaoal siure|dwod
0AnC pue sanssl ayl
/0556 Jo abeiuadiad reymn
190.1e)
anoqe ¢ (019 onseld ‘sse|b
%T = ‘saned| panol ‘sauols
ERNSIE o)) ‘Pnw ‘1snp) snuiap Jo
€00IINJad sy | ON Joquy %vT %0T sjona| ajqeideooeun | YOOI3N
pey 1ousIp Jno
Jo abejuaalad yeym
%0T
aouew.oad ON/SOA ,T/9T0Z
ul suononpals palabiel 1oj suoseal pue LT/9T0OZ pabueys 19618 mocmEhotMn_ mw\%Wow uondiosaq Jod
10] 196.1e] pasodoud 10j uonealnsnl/siuswwo)d 1061e] | pasodoid ot/s10c € 1 Id
T Xilpuaddy (ODSN) s18b6ue] pue mainay - /T/9T0Z SJ101edIpu| 8oueWI0)Iad A

Page 118



190.1e)
Mojaq
%00'T = &SaInuIwW GT
aoueIa|0} uIynum o1 papuodsal
. laquiy ale 19210 asiou Ainp
suoneldadxa Iswoisnd s1eaw Ajeiauab ON %2506 %0006 | au o1 uBnou pessed | 600IaN
yoiym asuewlopad Juaiing 19981 01 1896uel urejureiy 0 0
ale eyl siure|dwod
asIou sInoy Jo 1IN0
%00°06 jo abejusalad yeym
abe
\Hso_mh épapJooal Bulaq
%00°T = Jo sAep Bunyiom QT
‘Bureaq e sey ‘sisumopue] pue [edidiuniy 9due.g|0] UILIM panowal aie
) o . . (10enuo02-uou J J8pIo
eyig ‘003 019 salded puiy) jo sduewIopad ay) ON squy %958 %00°06 uoneien) Buiddy | 8O013N
yey: pasiubooal aq pjnoys 1 ybnouyye 10b.1e; ureiurey ->=. B. mmocmv_o:_
%0006 papJooal ayl
Jo abejuaaiad RyM
190.1e)
MoJaq ¢ papiooal Bulaq jo
%00°T = sAep BupIom g uIylMm
9oUeI9|0} paAowal ale A_uwh.mw_o
"190.1e) ureurey ON laquiy %6806 %00°'06 10enU02) Buiddi | 2001IAN
-AJl} JO s@duUapIdUI
. papJodal ayl
%0006 Jo abejuaaiad eyM
aouew.oad ON/SOA ,T/9T0Z
ul suononpals palabiel 1oj suoseal pue LT/9T0OZ pabueys 19618 mocmEhotMn_ mw\%%ow uondiosaq Jod
10} 196.1e] pasodoud 10} uoealsnl/sijuswwo) 196.e] | pasodolid 9t/sT0C € 1 Id™

T Xilpuaddy (ODSN) s18b6ue] pue mainay - /T/9T0Z SJ101edIpu| 8oueWI0)Iad A

Page 119




‘a1el uonajdwod e aauelenb

J0UURD 1 ‘suoissiwad uaIdIyNns sjuelb [1DUN0D

a1 Jl UsAa eyl sueaw siy] ‘saoud Auadoud Buisu

j0 abeiuenpe axe) 0] A1) pue Jlem Aew siadojansp

Se 8duswwod Jou Aew syosloid rey) uesw ued
19xrew Buisnoy ayi Jo arels ay ‘uoissiwiad Buluueld
uaAIb sI alIs e JIl usng "pals|dwod ate Asyl uaym

pue JI [0J1U0J JoUURI 1l 0S ‘sBuljamp ay1 Jo Aliolew
1SeA 8y} p|ing Ajrenjoe 1ou saop 1l Ing ‘918 ue|d

[e207 ay1 ybnoliyl suonedole aus buisnoy dibarens
Bupfew ‘voissiwiad Buluue|d Bunuelb Aq sbuljjamp
Jo Buipjing alow abeinodus ued |1oUN0)D ayl "siabiel
Bunssaw sainbiy uons|dwod Buisnoy JaAo aduanjjul
palnwi| e sey [1I9uno) 8y} Jeyl ajou 0} Juenodw

S "0EZ J0 196.Je) WaLINd BY] YUM SNURUOD am

Aes pjnom | uoseal Jeys Joj os ‘pouad Bulionuow ayl
uiyum palajdwod ag 01 Aoy Alybiy pue pasuswiwiod
ale mouy am Yyaiym (spunoib sinds re suun snid

09 Buipnjoul) siuswdojanap Jabie| Jo Jaqwinu e ale
alay) Jeak 1xaN ‘JeaA Jad abelane uo ggg syl bunssw
aq p|noys am Jeyl sajealpul ‘suoissiwiad Buiuued
uo paseq ‘Aloyaalen Buisnoy Jno 1ng ‘mo| ale siaquinN

ON

106.8)
MOJ3q %SG
ulyum =
9ourI9|0]
Jaquiy

0€¢

TOT

(0574

¢IOUISIp 8y Ul sawoy
JO Jaquwinu 8y ul
9seaJ09p I0 asealoul
18U ay1 sem Jey\

OTOIaN

aouewJiopiad
ul suononpals palabiel 1oj suoseal pue LT/9T0OZ
10] 196.1e] pasodoud 10j uonealnsnl/siuswwo)d

ON/S®A
pabueyd
1961

LT/9TOC
190.ue |

pasodoid

aouewlollad

91/5T0Z £O

9T/STOC
196ue

uondiiosaq

9
Id

T Xilpuaddy

(OSN)

s1obie] pue MaInay - /T/9T0Z S101edipu| aduewojiad Aoy

Page 120



-aouewIoad Jeak 19b1e)
15413 J0 1YBI| BUI Ul MBIASI pUB UoBa 040€ Je ‘SIojedlpul Moisq
juswade|dal g ay) usamiaq Ajjenba 1ab1e1 9509 ayl % =
1|ds 0} ayeudoidde palapisuod 21042193 SI 3| “SINSIHEIS 9oUEIS|0} LT/9T02 ¢9SNal 10 pajokoal
aouewiloyad ay) 0} sjunowe [enba Ajybnol aINqLIUod SRR 10} 3 0} JUSS SeM
Bunsodwod pue BulpAday "uonenion|) reuoseas VN VN loyeaipuy a1sem pjoyasnoy [je €T0IaN
10} JUnod2e 0] paisnlpe siabire) Ajuanenb yum 9409 M3N Jo abejuaaiad reym
S| Z0OIAN 404 18buey ay | ‘Bunsodwod pue Buldhoal 9608
Buneredss (TOIIN pue €TOIAN) SI0¥edIpul MaU 2
918312 01 Z0OI3N Punyds uodn paseq Joredipul MaN
190.1e)
MoJaq
%00'T = ¢siueus)
‘spolad pPIOA OU PIOAE 0} }NJIYIP pue Sslueus) NI ET (o) . oA 01 19| sem sasiwaid
10 JaAouIN] B aq |IMm 313y} Ajgennsu| 1ablel urelurely N laquy /06886 700°86 [e12JaWwwod Ino ¢T013N
Jo abejusalad yeym
%00°'86
190.1e)
anoge
%50 = épred 1ou sem
‘'siealle Buinsind Ajaanoe-oid uonenfep 90URI3|0] sasiwald [elolswwod
pue saleis3 ulynm sainpadsold mau Jo Jnsal e SOA laquy %92 %0'S Ino Joj pred aq 0} TTOIAN
se aouewlopnad panoidwi asiubooaal 01 yidn pasodouid anp alam am 1ual ay]
Jo abejuaaiad reymn
%S¢
aouewJiopiad ON/SOA ,T/9T02
ul suononpaJ pajabiel 1oy suoseal pue LT/9T0Z pabueyo 1961e] SoUeLlI0}Iad wdmmﬁow uondiiosaq Jod
10] 196.1e] pasodoud 10j uonealnsnl/siuswwo)d 1061e] | pasodoid 91/ST0C €0 190IeL Id™
T Xilpuaddy (ODSN) s18b6ue] pue mainay - /T/9T0Z SJ101edIpu| 8oueWI0)Iad A

Page 121



196.1e)
MO|3(q
%C =
mQCOEm_B ¢uonsabip olqolseue
12qUIY/ D\_ wmom 1o palsodwod
"an0ge £TOIIN 89S - J01edIpul MaN VIN VIN T aq 01 Juas sem | $TOIAN
; 21seMm pjoyasnoy [je
MON 10 abeiuadiad reymn
%0¢€
aouewJiopiad ON/SOA ,T/9T02
ul suononpaJ pajabiel 1oy suoseal pue LT/9T0Z pabueyo 1961e] mocmEhotMa mw\%wmom uondiiosaq Jod
10] 196.1e] pasodoud 10j uonealnsnl/siuswwo)d 1061e] | pasodoid ot/s10c € 1 Id™
T Xilpuaddy (ODSN) s18b6ue] pue mainay - /T/9T0Z SJ101edIpu| 8oueWI0)Iad A

Page 122



Agenda ltem 13

Report to Neighbourhoods and
Communities Select Committee

Date of meeting: 15 March 2016 S C RU—l—l NY

. Epping Forest District Council
Portfolio: Governance and Development Management

(Councillor J. Philip)
Subject: Data Quality Strategy 2016/17 — 2018/19
Officer contact for further information: Barbara Copson (01992 564042)

Democratic Services Officer: Adrian Hendry (01992 564246)

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

That the Committee reviews the Data Quality Strategy for 2016/17 — 2018/19

Executive Summary:

The Council needs timely, accurate and reliable data in order to manage activities and meet
internal and external requirements to demonstrate accountability through accurate reporting.
Data is used for the assessment of the Council’s performance, including the Key
Performance Indicators (KPIs). The Data Quality Strategy sets out the arrangements for the
next 3 years to ensure key data meets the highest standards and is ‘right first time’.

Reasons for Proposed Decision:

The Committee has a role in monitoring KPI performance, and those monitoring activities
require that the data used in calculations is accurate and can be relied upon.

Other Options for Action:

None. Arrangements to deliver the consistency of standards and awareness of data
ownership are essential to ensure the high quality of data. Failure to secure and improve the
quality of data could mean that evaluation of performance is inaccurate, opportunities for
improvement lost, and might adversely affect the reputation of the authority.

Report:

1. Good quality data is essential to support the Council’s decision making especially
decisions involving finance and performance. Additionally the Council’s customers, partners
and others interested in the Council’s performance, need to be able to rely on the data we
produce for evaluation purposes. The Council is also accountable for the money it spends
and must manage competing claims on its resources. It therefore requires data which is
accurate, reliable and timely in order to plan for the future and meet customer needs.

2. The Council has identified principles and arrangements to ensure high standards of
data quality and has for a number of years, formalized them within a strategy, to support

Page 123



consistency and encourage high standards of practice of data quality management. This
revised strategy continues to reflect the principles for data quality originally identified by the
former Audit Commission in its publication, ‘Improving information to support decision
making: Standards for better data quality, and reflects best practice and improvements to
systems and processes, including systems and arrangements for the production and
submission of Key Performance Indicator data. The Council aims to ensure that all the data it
uses is ‘right first time’. Therefore data quality arrangements include ownership of data,
systems, and ensuring staff have the skills and knowledge they need to deliver high
standards of data and data management.

3. The Council also relies on data produced externally by third party organisations and
therefore we need to be confident that that data is robust. This revised strategy includes the
development of the mapping of third party data to understand the data quality processes to
which third party data is subject, and to ensure that those processes are of a high standard
and therefore that the data is reliable.

4, This revised strategy was considered by Corporate Governance Group in November
2015 and by the Finance and Performance Management Cabinet Committee on 21 January
2016.

Resource Implications: From existing resources.

Legal and Governance Implications: None. This report seeks to progress the duty to
secure continuous improvement in the way the Council manages its functions.

Safer, Cleaner, Greener Implications: None

Consultation Undertaken: Corporate Governance Group in November 2015 and Finance
and Performance Cabinet Committee in January 2016.

Background Papers: None.

Impact Assessments:

Risk Management - No issues.

Equality - This strategy sets out the requirements for all data the Council relies upon and
therefore includes data relevant to services which specifically meet the needs of protected

groups. Service provision which is based upon reliable, relevant and timely information is
more likely to be effective and efficient.

Page 124



@ Epping Forest ~ Corporate
District Council Strategy

Data Quality Strategy
2016/17-2018/19




Introduction

Good quality data is essential to support Council decision making especially decisions involving financial
and performance related decisions. The Council's customers, partners and organisations monitoring the
Council’s progress, need to be able to rely on the data we produce to evaluate our performance. The
Council is accountable for the money it spends and must manage competing claims on its resources. It
therefore requires data which is accurate, reliable and timely to be able to meet customer needs and plan
for the future.

Epping Forest District Council recognises the importance of data quality and the Council is committed to
ensuring that it maintains the highest standards of data quality. This strategy sets out its approach to
delivering those arrangements and the ongoing improvement of data quality.

Its purpose is to bring together in one place the range of existing processes and approaches which exist to
manage data quality to ensure that everyone who produces or uses performance data within the Council
understands what is expected of them, and that the Council’s partners understand what they can expect
from our data.

Scope of the data quality strategy

This strategy covers all data and information generated and used by the Council including performance
management information, data relating to the delivery of services, financial and service management
information and corporate governance information.

This strategy does not cover the use of personal data as defined by the Data Protection Act 1998. The
Council's arrangements for handling personal data are set out within its Data Protection Policy.

Arrangements for data quality relating to the Council’'s Key Performance Indicators (KPIs), is fully
developed within this strategy reflecting their strategic significance to the Council.

Data quality objectives

The Council understands the importance of data quality and is committed to being consistent in its
management of data quality both within the authority and where it works in partnership with other
organisations.

The Council aims to ensure that all the data that it uses is ‘right first time’. All officers with responsibility for
collecting, collating and reporting data must ensure that the data provided can be relied upon. .

The Council is committed to the following data quality principles originally identified in the ‘Improving
information to support decision making: Standards for better quality data’ publication by the Audit
Commission in March 2007.

Data Quality Principles

The following principles represent the Council’'s approach to data quality:

Accuracy Data must be accurate for its intended purpose, and be represented clearly and in
sufficient detail to enable informed decision-making

Validity Data must be recorded and used in accordance with relevant requirements, rules and
definitions to ensure consistency

Reliability Data must reflect stable and consistent collection methods

2

Page 126



Timeliness Data must be available for its intended use within a reasonable time period. It must be
available quickly and frequently enough to support information needs

Completeness Data must be recorded in its entirety, avoiding gaps in information and duplication of

data
Relevance Data must be relevant to the purpose for which it is used
Security Data must be stored securely and confidentially where appropriate

Data quality arrangements

The Council operates a sound, well-established approach to the achievement of data quality, through the

following arrangements:

1. Responsibilities and ownership

The Council collates and uses a significant amount and range of data in the course of its work. The
Council and all its employees have responsibility and therefore ownership of the data they collate or
process, or have control over.

Responsibilities
Role

Governance and
Development Management
Portfolio Holder

Portfolio Holders

Select Committees

Director of Governance

Chief Executive

Directors/Assistant
Directors

Service managers

Responsibility

Responsible for the strategic management of data quality.

Individual Portfolio Holders are responsible for data quality issues with respect
to Key Performance Indicators within their portfolios and for ensuring that
appropriate data quality processes are in place.

Select Committees are responsible for the regular review of KPI data, including
any potential issues of data quality.

The Director of Governance is responsible for the overall collection and
reporting of Key Performance Indicator performance data to Members and
Management Board.

Responsible for the operational management of data quality.

Responsible for ensuring that effective arrangements are in place within their
areas of responsibility to ensure data quality requirements are met. They are
also responsible for validating (Assistant Directors) or authorising (Directors)
the Key Performance Indicator data in relation to those areas under their
responsibility.

Responsible for contributing to the integration of data quality arrangements
into their areas of responsibility, and for ensuring that requirements for data
guality within their areas of responsibility are met. They also ensure that staff
have access to and are familiar with corporate requirements and directorate
level procedures for data quality, and that role specific responsibilities relevant
to data quality, are included in relevant job descriptions.

3
Page 127



Performance Improvement Supports the Council’s corporate performance management and data quality

Unit (PIV) arrangements. The PIU supports data processes for performance indicator
monitoring, and provides advice and guidance regarding the collection and
calculation of data for specific indicators.

All staff Are responsible for the integrity and accuracy of any data that they collect,
input, store, retrieve or otherwise, and therefore have ownership of that data.

2. Policies and procedures

Appropriate policies and procedures are in place to check data. Verification processes are required to be
adhered to by all officers involved in data collection processes and data is used in ways that ensure the
establishment of a clear audit trail.

3. Systems and processes

Appropriate systems and processes are in place to secure the quality of data. Officers understand
definitions relating to different types of data. A data quality lead is in place for all relevant systems. The
processes concerning the production of KPI data is included at page 5 of this strategy.

4. People and skills

Officers are trained or appropriately supervised so that they have the appropriate knowledge, competencies
and capacity for their role. All officers recognise the need for high standards of data quality and their
individual roles in achieving this. Responsibility for data quality is part of appropriate job descriptions and
the Personal Development Review (PDR) process.

5. Datause

Relevant focus is placed on securing data which is accurate, valid, reliable, timely, relevant and complete.
Data is presented in ways which are easy to understand, is accurate and can support recommendations
and conclusions, both for internal and external use.

In collating performance data, all working papers must set out where data has come from and what action
has been taken to ensure the quality of this data.

6. Third party data

We rely on source data from third parties (data produced externally) to report on progress on both the
Council's and Partnership’s work. To achieve our Data Quality objectives, we need to ensure that data from
third parties that we use in our performance management is produced to the same high quality as data
produced internally.

To ensure the third party data we use is robust we will undertake a mapping exercise of significant third
party data streams, in order to identify data quality arrangements and produce risk analysis. The mapping
exercise will:

a) identify significant data streams;

b) identify the business processes and/or performance measurement to which they relate;

c) identify EFDC ownership;

d) identify the data quality processes used; and

e) evaluate risk to EFDC.

The mapping exercise will be reviewed in line with the 3 yearly review of this Data Quality Strategy.

We have developed a number of protocols for data sharing with our key partners; for example, a police joint
protocol for the exchange of information.

Page 128



Data quality control, assurance and review

We continue to put systems and procedures in place to ensure good data quality. The Council’'s data
guality arrangements are subject to internal control, assurance and review in the following ways:

(@)
(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(f)

All data is fully checked and reviewed within directorates/service areas prior to being reported.

Definitions apply to KPIs including the data, its source and the subsequent calculations. The KPIs are
also subject to a controlled process of submission and verification.

The Corporate Risk Register specifies major corporate risks that include issues related to data, for
example, risks such as the loss of business data and information etc.

The Council acts on enquiries made by service users in relation to the quality of data reported and
undertakes appropriate remedial action where arising from review or assessment processes.

Significant issues identified in relation to data quality are considered by the Corporate Governance
Group and escalated as appropriate.

Third party data streams used for performance measurement will be mapped during the first year of this
strategy and their data quality arrangements identified to ensure the data is robust.

This strategy is reviewed every 3 years or sooner if required.

Key performance indicator data

The Council measures and monitors its performance against a range of indicators identified as key to the
Council’s performance and improvement. This performance data is recorded through the Council’s
Performance Management system (TEN Performance Manager) and used to report progress to Members
and Management Board. Guidance in the production of this data and the use of TEN is provided by the
Performance Improvement Unit.

Responsibilities for KPI data

Role Responsibility and ownership

Cabinet The Cabinet is responsible for the establishment of the annual suite of KPls,

including the adoption of appropriate performance targets.

Portfolio Holders Individual Portfolio Holders are responsible for data quality issues with

respect to KPIs within their portfolios, and for ensuring that appropriate data
guality processes are in place.

Select Committees Select Committees are responsible for monitoring performance against KPls

which fall within their areas of responsibility.

Finance and Performance The Finance and Performance Management Cabinet Committee is

Management Cabinet responsible for the regular review of KPI data and any potential issues of
Committee data quality.
Management Board Management Board is responsible for annually agreeing a suite of KPIs, their

targets, tolerances and improvement plans. It receives quarterly and end of
year KPI performance reports and identifies improvement opportunities.

Directors Service directors are responsible for KPI data quality within their Directorates.

They are responsible for authorising KPI returns and for ensuring the timely
completion and submission of KPI information.

Director of Governance The Director of Governance is responsible for this Data Quality Strategy, and

the overall collection and reporting of KPI performance data to Members and
Management Board.

5

Page 129



The Performance The PIU manages the KPI production, verification and reporting framework
Improvement Unit and the TEN system.

KPI completing Officers  Provide timely, accurate and reliable data entry using the Summary Control

Forms (SCF) and TEN, and clear evidence to support the data provided.

KPI verifying Officers Verify the data and supporting evidence provided by the Completing Officer

using the SCF and evidence provided.

KPI system

1. Officers involved in KPI data processes follow adopted procedures for KPI performance data

collection and reporting, which require that a proforma return and full audit trail must be compiled
for all KPIs on a quarterly basis.

2. Officers responsible for collating and reporting data must provide clear evidence to support the data

submitted, and this data must clearly show the figures used in the calculations.

3. All KPIs have specific definitions and agreed calculation rules.

4. Data collation, KPI calculation and statistically returns must reflect the individual KPI definitions.

5. KPI submissions are made via the TEN performance management system administered by the PIU.

6. The KPI authoriser must be of Assistant Director or Director level.

KPI production process (see Figure 1)

1.

The PIU triggers the process for quarterly data submission according to predetermined
arrangements.

When requested by the PIU, the completing officer compiles the data and annotates the evidence
for verification and audit purposes. The Completing officer then completes all required fields on
TEN; a Summary Control Form (SCF) in line with the KPI definition and agreed calculation,
attaches the annotated evidence, and submits them electronically to the Verifying Officer.

The Verifying Officer checks and verifies the data submitted to TEN and the SCF for accuracy and
completeness, and submits the form electronically to the authoriser.

The Authoriser checks that TEN has been fully updated; that appropriately annotated evidence is
attached; and the SCF is fully completed and accurate; and submits the form electronically to the
PIU.

The PIU checks the SCFs and TEN data submissions for accuracy and completeness and
produces performance reports for consideration by Members and Management Board.

The PIU maintains appropriate evidence of the KPI data submission process for audit purposes.

Page 130



Authorser checks PlIUtriEEEs KR

=CFand TEM fully preduction process
completed and by e mailing KPI

evidence atached compkters of
and sends to FIU quanery deadline

KM data production cyce

werfier checks TEN KPI complete s
and SCF completed compile dats;
and evidence and annotEte evidene;
cakubtiors for compkte SCF, and
accuracy and sends TEMand send 1o
to authorser werfier

Figure 1

Monitoring and review of the data quality strategy

The Data Quality Strategy is reviewed every three years. The next review will take place in 2018/19 or
sooner if necessary.

Page 131



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 14

Environment & Neighbourhoods - Enforcement action in 2015

1. Summary

1.1 In line with previous reports on enforcement activities of the Environment & Neighbourhoods team,
the data has been broken down into 6 month periods covering the summer and winter months. In
general summer months are busier, particularly for noise complaints. This pattern has been repeated in
2015. Appendix 1 - Table 1 provides a breakdown of enforcement work carried out by the Environment
& Neighbourhood Officers (ENO). Noise and waste/fly-tipping issues make up a large percentage of
the teams enforcement work, it is estimated that Officers spend 80% of their time on these two issues
across the district.

1.2 In some cases officers are clearly working towards establishing non-compliance with the law, with
the aim of instigating prosecution proceedings e.g. fly-tipping incidents. However, officers also spend a
great deal of time trying to educate, deter and resolve issues informally. That is particularly the case
with noise issues and other neighbour nuisance complaints. Although prosecutions draw attention,
enforcement officers investigate and resolve many more cases informally.

1.3 Officers have started to use new powers to issue formal Community Protection Warnings (CPW)
and Community Protection Notices (CPN) for a range of issues that have a detrimental effect of a
persistent or continuing nature on the quality of life of those in the locality. This new power provides
officers with more scope to deal with some issues that previously did not fall under specific statutory
nuisance powers.

1.4 Although the new power is welcome, it comes at a time when other enforcement agencies, that
share similar enforcement responsibilities, such as the Police, Environment Agency and Essex County
Council are increasingly under pressure, leading to more enforcement work being directed to the ENO
team.

1.5 The ENO team have also recently taken over the responsibility for all dog noise complaints and dog
fouling issues with retirement of the Council’s Animal Welfare Officer. Environment and Neighbourhood
Officers already prioritise cases. This is likely to become more important if demand for enforcement
work by the ENO team increases.

1.6 For more information of the range of enforcement work carried out by the ENO team, please see the
Council website at: www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/environment-and-neighbourhoods-team

2. Fly-tipping incidents

2.1 Enforcement action data in relation to fly tipping incidents is shown in Appendix 1- Table 1: Activity
recorded by Environment & Neighbourhood Officers (ENO) — “winter” 2015 (1t October 2015 to 2
March 2016) and previous 6 monthly data for comparison.

2.2. All incidents of fly-tipping reported to the Council are recorded. Incidents that may have some
evidence to trace the source of the waste or fly-tipper are passed to the Environment and
Neighbourhoods Team (ENO) to investigate. The incidents passed to the ENO team are then
prioritised and investigated if possible prior to clearance. Fly-tipping on the public highway and Council
land accounted for 90% of the reported incidents.

2.3 The Environment & Neighbourhood team continue to pursue fly-tippers through the courts. The

following prosecutions were carried out in 2015:

Prosecution for fly-tipping at Springfields, Waltham Abbey

Page 133


http://www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/environment-and-neighbourhoods-team

2.4 Mr Terence Sullivan of Morris Court Waltham Abbey was fined £120 and ordered to pay a
contribution towards the prosecution costs of £200 after pleading guilty to an offence of depositing fly-
tipped waste on 16" March 2015 in a bin store at Springfields, Waltham Abbey. The fly tipping of waste
in the bin store serving properties in Springfields Waltham Abbey was witnessed by a member of the
public on 16" March 2015 and reported to the Council the following day. Environment and
Neighbourhood officers were able to trace the vehicle used in the fly tipping back to Terence Sullivan of
Morris Court Waltham Abbey, who when subsequently interviewed under caution admitted being
responsible for its deposit which included some waste from his business as a roofing company.

Prosecutions for fly-tipping in Burton Road car park, Loughton

2.5 At Chelmsford Magistrates Court on 21 May 2015, Martin Temple of no fixed abode pleaded guilty
to an offence of fly tipping in the car park at the rear of the shops in Burton Road Debden on 1st
January 2015. He was fined £145 and ordered to pay a contribution towards the Council's legal costs of
£150 and a victim surcharge of £20. In addition, lan Hawkins of St Pauls Way Waltham Abbey pleaded
guilty to an offence of fly tipping in the same location on 5 January 2015. He was fined £45 and ordered
to pay a contribution towards the Council's legal costs of £100 and a victim surcharge of £20.

Serial offender prosecuted for 46 fly-tipping offences on Council land in Loughton

2.6 Evidence gathered by the Council’s Environment & Neighbourhood team assisted by CCTV
evidence provided by colleagues from the Community Safety team led to a prosecution in Chelmsford
Magistrates Court on 23 April 2015. The prosecution was a culmination of many months of thorough
investigation work that resulted in a number of formal interviews before the offender was prosecuted.

2.7 £3,567 clearance costs and a contribution towards the prosecution costs of £85 were awarded to
the Council after Mr John Edward Newman of Honey Lane Waltham Abbey pleaded guilty to multiple
fly-tipping offences between 6™ January 2012 and 14" July 2014 in a garage area in Pyrles Lane
Loughton. Mr Newman was also given a 26 week prison sentence suspended for one year with a
curfew for the period of 6 months between the hours of 10.00pm and 8.00am.

2.8 In addition, the Magistrates made a Criminal Behaviour Order on conviction. For a period of 5 years
Mr Newman is prohibited from advertising any waste clearance services and loading or carrying any
waste in a vehicle unless he obtains a waste carriers licence or is employed by a licensed company. He
was also banned from entering the garage area in Pyrles Lane, Loughton where the evidence of the fly-
tipping was recorded.

2.9 In relation to the case a number of householders were cautioned for failing to carry out reasonable
checks to ensure that they gave their waste to an authorised person and a builder was prosecuted for
failing his waste duty of care.

3. Littering & Fixed penalty notices (FPN)

3.1 Pre-arranged operations to target littering offenders have been carried out across the district.
Officers have noted that members of the public now appear to be more aware of our uniformed
presence and can be seen to be using the litter bins provided.

3.2 The ENO team participated in a County wide litter prevention campaign in this period, with deterrent
and education rather than enforcement in mind e.g. officers on litter patrols in Loughton spoke to
smokers before they had an opportunity to litter (in all but two cases) and cigarette butt pouches were
handed out to grateful members of the public.

3.3 The ENO team continue to carry out regularly litter and dog fouling patrols and will be participating

in another County wide litter campaign in 2016. The ENO team have recently received a supply of new
dog fouling warning signs that are currently being positioned in hot-spots.

Page 134



4. Noise

4.1 The Council provides a 24 hour restricted callout service for noise complaints throughout the year.
The Council aims to resolve noise complaints informally but has strong powers to take legal action if
noise causes a statutory nuisance. There is further information on the Council’s web site at:

http://www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/index.php/residents/your-environment/crime-safety/out-of-hours-
noise-service

4.2 Residents suffering from noise nuisance can report incidents and obtain advice on noise issues by
contacting the Council on 01992 564608, within normal working hours. Outside normal working hours
incidents can be reported on 01992 564000. The duty noise rota is covered by the ENO team. This
service enables officers to respond quickly to ongoing noise complaints, witness incidents and pursue
formal action. The majority of complaints are resolved informally but there have been a number of
prosecutions in 2015.

4.3 Christopher Piper of 38 Marlescroft Way Loughton was prosecuted by Epping Forest District
Council for a breach of a Noise Abatement Notice served on him on 11" June 2015 which required him
to maintain the volume of music and amplified sound emanating from 38 Marlescroft Way Loughton at a
level that will not cause a statutory nuisance to the occupiers of noise sensitive premises. The breach
occurred on 19% June 2015.

4.4. Mr Piper failed to attend at a hearing in Chelmsford Magistrates Court on 8" October 2015 and the
Magistrates found him guilty of the offence in his absence. They imposed a fine of £120. He was also
ordered to pay a contribution towards the Council’s prosecution costs of £200, the new Criminal Court
charge of £520 and a Victim surcharge of £20. Essex Police subsequently obtained a Closure Order in
respect of the property on 18" September 2015 and the Council also obtained a forthwith possession
order in Edmonton County Court on 6" October 2015.

4.5 Hannah Hines of Caneland Court was prosecuted by Epping Forest District Council for a breach
of Noise Abatement Notices served on her on 22 April 2015. Notices were served after Council officers
were satisfied that a statutory nuisance was being caused by noise coming from her property and
required her to restrict the level of shouting, screaming, raised voices, banging and impact noise at a
level that will not cause a statutory nuisance to the occupiers of noise sensitive premises. The breach
occurred on 26" April 2015.

4.6 At a hearing in Chelmsford Magistrates Court on 9t July 2015 both Ms Hines pleaded guilty to the
offence. She was fined £110 and ordered to pay a contribution towards the costs of the prosecution of
£200. She was also ordered to pay a Criminal Court Charge of £150 and a Victim surcharge of £20.
The Magistrates were informed that a complaint of noise nuisance had been received by the Council on
26 April 2016 at about 01.25 hours. An Environment and Neighbourhoods officer visited the
complainants and between 01.47 and 02.40 hours witnessed shouting, screaming, swearing, live
singing and banging which was at a level that would have prevented sleep and disturbed the
complainant’s enjoyment of their property throughout that time.

4.7 Jaqueline Hunt and Nicholas Hunt of Hoveton Way Fairlop (near Barkingside) Essex were
prosecuted by Epping Forest District Council for a breach of Noise Abatement Notices served on them
on 5" March 2014 in respect of the fish restaurant “Catch” 147 Queens Road Buckhurst Hill of which
Jaqueline Hunt is the Designated Premises Supervisor and Nicholas Hunt is the manager. The Notices
were served after Council officers were satisfied that a statutory nuisance was being caused by noise
coming from the restaurant and require them to maintain the volume of music and amplified sound
emanating from the restaurant at a level that will not cause a statutory nuisance to the occupiers of
noise sensitive premises. The breach occurred on 27t February 2015.

Page 135


http://www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/index.php/residents/your-environment/crime-safety/out-of-hours-noise-service
http://www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/index.php/residents/your-environment/crime-safety/out-of-hours-noise-service

4.8 At a hearing in Chelmsford Magistrates Court on 21st May 2015 both Mr & Mrs Hunt pleaded guilty
to the offence. They were each fined £400 and each ordered to pay costs of the prosecution of £270.
The Magistrates were informed that a complaint of noise nuisance had been received by the Council on
5t February 2015 at about 21.55 hours. An Environment and Neighbourhoods officer had visited the
complainants and between 22.40 and 23.10 heard music and live singing which was at a level that
would have prevented sleep and disturbed the complainant's enjoyment of their whole property
throughout that time. It was therefore in breach of the Abatement Notice.

£660 fine for breach of noise abatement notice due to loud music

4.8 Ms Natasha Thompson of 22 Longcroft Rise Loughton was found guilty of breaching a noise
abatement notice and fined £660 in Chelmsford Magistrates Court on 27 April 2015. She was also
ordered to pay a victim surcharge of £66 and a contribution towards the Council’s prosecution costs of
£200.

4.9 At an earlier hearing Ms Thompson pleaded not guilty to the offence and a trial was fixed for 27"
April 2015. Ms Thompson failed to attend at the trial which proceeded in her absence. An Environment
and Neighbourhood officer gave evidence as to what he had heard. He also gave evidence about
numerous offers to Ms Thompson by the Council to visit her and provide advice to help her comply with
the notice.

5. Taxi licensing checks

5.1 The ENO team carry out regularly checks on taxis late at night and into the early of the hours of the
morning throughout the year, to check compliance with taxi licence conditions and to detect and deter
unlicensed taxis from operating. Recently there have been no reports from licensed drivers that
unlicensed drivers have been operating in the area after a successful prosecution earlier in the year. In
the past EFDC licensed taxi drivers have been quick to notify the Council if they suspect that an illegal
taxi is operating, taking their trade. However, checks in June 2015 did result in a prosecution of an
unlicensed driver.

Prosecution for unlicensed taxis — Mr R Wilkinson

5.2 Robert Wilkinson of St Mary’s Way Chigwell was fined £150 and ordered to pay the Council's
prosecution and investigation costs of £677.83 after he pleaded guilty by post to an offence of standing
or plying for hire as a Hackney Carriage without the appropriate licence.

5.3 The Council’'s Environment & Neighbourhood team carried out spot checks on unofficial taxi ranks
at Loughton and Epping in the early hours of 21st June 2015. This resulted in a prosecution in
Chelmsford Magistrates Court on 10" December 2015. Officers witnessed a Citroen Belingo owned by
Robert Wilkinson in both locations apparently standing or plying for hire. At the location in Loughton he
drove off when officers approached his vehicle. They were able to speak to him at the Epping location
when he told them that he was waiting for his son to come out of one of the clubs. It was noted that the
expiry of the Hackney Carriage Licence plate on the vehicle was 19 March 2016. However the following
day it was found that the licence had expired on 19t March 2015 and had not been renewed. Also on
that date Mr Wilkinson had applied for a new Licence and had returned his previous licence plate with
the corner showing the year of expiry broken off. There however appeared to be an indication that a
marker pen had been used to change the date. Further CCTV evidence was also obtained to show that
Mr Wilkinson had been “ranking up” in Epping and had also displayed his illuminated “For hire” sign in
Loughton. When subsequently interviewed under caution Mr Wilkinson denied that he was standing or
plying for hire but admitted that it looked like he was displaying his illuminated for hire sign in Loughton
and that he was parked in the unofficial taxi rank in Epping.

Page 136



Appendix 1 - Safer Cleaner Greener Strategy - Enforcement Activities — 2015

Table 1: Activity recorded by Environment & Neighbourhood Officers (ENO) — “Winter” 2015/16 (15t October 2015 to 2 March 2016) and
previous 6 monthly data for comparison.

L€l 8bed

Activity recorded by Environment & Neighbourhood Officers (ENO) | Winter 2015/16 Summer Winter Summer
01/10/15 to 2015 2014/15 2014
02/03/16 (note 1) 01/04/15 to 01/10/14 to 01/04/14 to
30/9/15 31/03/15 30/9/14
Reactive fly-tip work in response to an incident
Number of fly-tipping incidents reported to the Council 821 858 959 (note 2) 893
Incidents investigated 226 257 432 642
Warning/Enforcement letter sent 83 43 108 70
Statutory notice 31 21 42 5
Prosecution 3 2 1 3
Formal Caution 2 4 3 3
Proactive waste/fly-tip work
Investigation 107 129 139 213
Warning/Enforcement letter 39 58 56 50
Statutory notice 6 1 7 3
Prosecution/caution not related to a specific fly-tip 0 1 1 0
Other non-fly-tipping work
Total enquiries/complaints dealt with by ENO team (excluding above) 676 1051 807 1145
1. Noise (Out of hours noise service complaints included in total) 443 (184) 782 (313) 549 (252) 805 (220)
2. Bonfires (domestic and commercial) 45 80 64 116
3. Street Trading 7 5 13 18
4. Licensing consultation 3 (note 3) 56 127 146
5. Other (light pollution, littering, planning consultations, unauthorised 34 41 36 60
encampments, flyposting).
Fixed Penalty Notices (FPN)
Litter, Waste receptacle offences, dog fouling. 3 7 10 3
FPN income (£) 110 295 600 175

Note 1 — data incomplete for this period, data produced on 2 March 2016, “winter period” finishes 31 March 2016. 5 month instead of 6 months data.
Note 2 — codes used for data collection changed in this period to accommodate integration with new waste contractor. Figure may include some duplication.

Note 3 — Consultations on Temporary Event Notices (TENS) are no longer recorded by the ENO team unless a representation is made. The majority of TENS require no
comment.



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Notes of the Last Meeting
	Minutes
	43 PICK Form from Councillor Neville
	44 Area Crime Analyst
	46 Local Policing Proposals

	5 Terms of Reference and Work Programme
	work programme

	6 Museum Development Trust
	7 Prevent Initiative and Radicalisation  Issues
	8 Brentwood Draft Local Plan: Public Consultation
	9 Local Plans Update
	10 Response to Lower Thames Crossing Consultation
	11 Key Performance Indicators 2015/16 - Quarter 3 Performance
	Appendix 1 - KPI Q3 2015-16
	Appendix 2 - KPI Improvement Plans 2015-16

	12 Key Performance Indicators 2016/17 - Review and Targets
	Appendix 1 KPI 2016-17 Review and targets

	13 Data Quality Strategy 2016/17 - 2018/19
	Appendix - Data Quality Strategy final draft

	14 Enforcement Activity

